
Having trouble reading this? Please call 0115 901 3906 if you need it in large print, audio 
or another format.

Agenda

Civic Centre, 
Arnot Hill Park, 

Arnold,
Nottinghamshire, 

NG5 6LU

Cabinet

Date: Thursday 8 November 2018

Time: 12.30 pm

Place: Chappell Room

For any further information please contact: 

Alec Dubberley

Service Manager Democratic Services

0115 901 3906

Public Document Pack



Cabinet
Membership

Chair Councillor John Clarke

Vice-Chair Councillor Michael Payne

 Councillor Peter Barnes
Councillor David Ellis
Councillor Gary Gregory
Councillor Jenny Hollingsworth
Councillor Henry Wheeler

Observers: Councillor Chris Barnfather



AGENDA Page

1  Apologies for Absence.

2  Declaration of Interests.

3  To approve, as a correct record, the minutes of the meeting held on 11 
October 2018.

5 - 7

4  Consultation on local government reorganisation in Nottinghamshire 9 - 14

Report of the Director of Organisational Development and Democratic Services.

5  Prudential Code Indicator Monitoring 2018/19 and Quarterly Treasury 
Activity Report

15 - 31

Report of the Deputy Chief Executive and Director of Finance.

6  Quarterly Budget Monitoring, Performance Digest & Virement Report 33 - 75

Report of the Senior Leadership Team.

7  Forward Plan 77 - 82

Report of the Service Manager Democratic Services.

8  Any other items the Chair considers urgent.



This page is intentionally left blank



MINUTES
CABINET

Thursday 11 October 2018

Councillor Michael Payne (Chair)

Councillor Peter Barnes
Councillor John Clarke
Councillor David Ellis

Councillor Gary Gregory
Councillor Jenny Hollingsworth
Councillor Henry Wheeler

Absent: Councillor Chris Barnfather

Officers in Attendance: K Bradford, H Barrington, M Cryer, A Dubberley, 
M Hill and M Hurst

48   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE. 

Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Clarke and 
Councillor Barnfather (observer).

49   TO APPROVE, AS A CORRECT RECORD, THE MINUTES OF THE 
MEETING HELD ON 6 SEPTEMBER 2018. 

RESOLVED:

That the minutes of the above meeting, having been circulated, be 
approved as a correct record.

50   DECLARATION OF INTERESTS. 

None.

51   REGULATION OF INVESTIGATORY POWERS ACT 2000 (RIPA) 
ANNUAL AUDIT AND UPDATE 

The Director of Organisational Development and Democratic Services 
introduced a report, which had been circulated in advance of the 
meeting, updating Members in relation to the Council’s use of powers 
under the Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000.

RESOLVED to:

1) Note the contents of the report; and

2) Approve the updated Regulation of Investigatory Powers policy 
document at Appendix 1 to the report.

Page 5

Agenda Item 3



52   GEDLING COUNTRY PARK DESIGNATION AS LOCAL NATURE 
RESERVE 

The Service Manager Parks and Street Care introduced a report, which 
had been circulated in advance of the meeting, seeking Cabinet 
approval to designate Gedling Country Park as a Local Nature Reserve.

Members congratulated all of the officers involved in the project and 
thanked 

RESOLVED to:

1) Designate Gedling Country Park, which is in council ownership, 
as a Local Nature Reserve;

2) Authorise the Director of Health and Community Wellbeing and 
the Director of Organisational Development and Democratic 
Services, in conjunction with the Service Manager Parks and 
Street Care, to proceed with the publication and designation 
process; and

3) Adopt the 5 year site Management plan produced by EMEC 
Ecology, updated by Parks Development Staff and the ‘friends of 
group’.

4) Formally thank the Friends of Gedling Country Park and 
associated volunteers, for their continued support and 
contribution to the development of Country Park and their input 
into its designation as a local nature reserve.

53   REMOVAL OF UNDER 18 BURIAL CHARGES 

The Service Manager Parks and Street Care introduced a report, which 
had been circulated in advance of the meeting, seeking Cabinet 
approval to remove the charge for burials in Council owned cemeteries 
where the deceased is under 18 years old.

Councillor Paling asked if the charge could be reviewed in light of 
children with special educational needs being classified as children until 
the age of 19.

RESOLVED to:

1) Approve the removal of charges made to residents of Gedling 
Borough for burials for those under 18 years of age with 
immediate effect; and

2) Delegate to the relevant portfolio holder authority to include 
children with special educational needs aged up to 19 years old 

Page 6



within the policy pending the outcome of investigations into the 
financial implications of the change

Councillor Clarke joined the meeting.

54   UPDATE ON RECYCLING, PERFORMANCE AND PROGRESS ON 
THE PLASTIC CLEVER COUNCIL INITIATIVE 

The Service Manager Transport and Waste introduced a report, which 
had been circulated in advance of the meeting, updating members  on  
the  latest  position  regarding  recycling  performance  and progress on 
the Plastic Clever Council Initiative.

RESOLVED to:

1) Note the report; and

2) Recommend that the Council hosts a recycling summit involving 
the County Council, district councils and partners in early 2019 
with the aim of creating a joint strategy to improve recycling rates 
across Nottinghamshire and to develop a high profile campaign to 
increase recycling and reduce contamination rates.

55   FORWARD PLAN 

Consideration was given to a report of the Service Manager, Democratic 
Services, which had been circulated prior to the meeting, detailing the 
Executive’s draft Forward Plan for the next four month period.

RESOLVED:

To note the report.

56   ANY OTHER ITEMS THE CHAIR CONSIDERS URGENT. 

None.

The meeting finished at 1.30 pm

Signed by Chair:
Date:

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



Report to Cabinet 

Subject: Consultation on local government reorganisation in Nottinghamshire

Date: 8 November 2018

Author: Director of Organisational Development and Democratic Services 

Wards Affected

Borough-wide.

Purpose

To seek approval to conduct a consultation exercise to obtain the views from residents and 
businesses in the Borough on the appropriate local government structure in Nottinghamshire.

Recommendation

THAT subject to budget approval, a specific consultation exercise to obtain the views 
of residents and businesses in the borough on the appropriate local government 
structure in Nottinghamshire be approved.

Key Decision 

This is not a Key Decision. 

Background

1.1 On 12 July 2018, Nottinghamshire County Council considered a motion about 
reorganisation of the local government structure in Nottinghamshire and:

a) agreed that the current ‘two-tier’ structure of the County Council and seven district 
councils is an inefficient and ineffective way to deliver services in Nottinghamshire, 
especially at a time when local government finances are under severe pressure;

b) agreed that forming a unitary council for Nottinghamshire would pool all existing 
resources and release approximately £20-£30 million pounds of public money 
annually, currently tied up in bureaucracy;

c) agreed that a unitary authority would achieve economies of scale and deliver a 
more responsive service to residents by:-

i) creating a single headquarters and management team for the new council to 
replace the eight headquarters, chief executives and senior management teams 
currently serving the County Council and the seven district councils;

Page 9

Agenda Item 4



ii) bringing all council services in Nottinghamshire together under one roof, 
removing duplication and requiring fewer buildings, which would also deliver 
capital receipts for reinvestment by disposing of surplus property;

iii) retaining two councillors per electoral division to serve the principles of 
localism, but removing the confusion caused by ‘two-tier’ local government 
where residents are frequently unclear whether they should raise issues with 
district councillors or county councillors;

iv) establishing single systems for council tax collection, waste management, 
housing and planning;

v) providing a proactive solution to the current budget challenges facing the 
County and district councils and thereby protecting critical services, such as 
adult social care, potentially avoiding steep and prolonged increases in council 
tax and other charges;

d) instructed officers to continue their work preparing a formal case for a unitary 
authority and bring forward a report to a future meeting of Full Council setting out 
the Business Case;

e) On approval of this Business Case agreed to write to the Secretary of State for 
Housing, Communities & Local Government formally stating Nottinghamshire 
County Council’s support for a unitary council for Nottinghamshire.

1.2 Following this decision, a cross party members working group has been established by 
the County Council to consider preparation of the case for change and associated work 
streams for the potential establishment of a unitary authority for Nottinghamshire.

1.3 The County Council’s Policy Committee has endorsed a two-phased approach to 
stakeholder engagement and community consultation to enable residents and 
stakeholders to have their say on local government re-organisation in Nottinghamshire. 
Phase 1 of the consultation commended on 3 October and closed on 31 October 2018; 
the purpose of which was to gain initial insight and views on the options at a formative 
stage to help inform the case for change. This was by way of an online survey only 
although the County Council indicated that it intended to also talk to stakeholders. A 
copy of the questions asked as part of the phase 1 consultation exercise appear at 
Appendix 1. It is understood that County Council will consider the responses at its 
meeting on 13 December 2018 and proposals for a phase 2 formal consultation will be 
agreed.

Proposal

2.1 Given the impact of local government reorganisation, it is important that the Borough 
Council understands and is able to properly represent the view of residents and 
businesses in the Borough during the process. The final decision on the future of the 
local government structure will be made by the Secretary of State, and whilst the current 
legislative framework does not require all councils in Nottinghamshire to unanimously 
agree on proposals put forward by the County Council, he will consider the level of 
agreement that has been achieved when making that decision. It is therefore proposed 
that the Borough Council carries out a specific consultation exercise to obtain the views 

Page 10



of residents and businesses within the borough and this feedback will inform the 
Council’s response to any reorganisation proposals. It is well established that any 
consultation exercise must take place at a formative stage in the decision making 
process and with those affected by the proposal, provide sufficient time and information 
to provide for an intelligent response, and the outcome of the consultation must be 
conscientiously taken into account.

2.2 It is not intended that the Borough Council replicates the consultation exercise which 
has been conducted by the County Council. Indeed the Code of Recommended 
Practice on Local Authority Publicity specifically states: ‘If another public authority, such 
as central government, has issued publicity on a particular topic, local authorities should 
incur expenditure on the same matter only if they consider that additional value is 
achieved by the duplication of that publicity. Additional value might be achieved if locally 
produced publicity gives a local context to national issues’. Instead it is proposed that a 
consultation document is issued in hard copy to all residents and businesses in the 
borough (rather than an online survey only) and asks a specific question which is not 
asked as part of the County Council Consultation; namely whether they agree Gedling 
Borough Council should be replaced by a larger authority that funds all Services and 
makes all decisions for the whole (or half) of Nottinghamshire. Officers are currently 
working on the content of the proposed consultation document which will be circulated 
to Cabinet in due course.

2.3 The Council regularly surveys residents as part of the biennial Gedling Satisfaction 
Survey and it is proposed that the same format is used on this occasion. We intend to:

 Print and distribute hard copies of the consultation document to each household in 
the borough, which can be returned via freepost. This will ensure that all 
households in the borough are made aware of the proposals and have an 
opportunity to respond even if they do not have access to a digital device.

 Encourage online completion. 
 Use social media and ‘Keep me Posted’ in order to maintain continual promotion of 

the consultation and share information to a wide audience that will capture both 
urban and rural area and target age groups which have been under represented in 
previous Gedling satisfaction surveys.

 Employ technical measures to identify whether multiple responses come from the 
same computer and ask for a postcode to be supplied.

 Employ a research agency to manage the response handling and data input of the 
surveys, plus produce initial calculation tables. This will enable the Customer 
Insight Officer to produce a report soon after all feedback is received.  

2.4 It is proposed that the consultation will be progressed in accordance with the indicative 
timetable below. The outcome of the consultation will be reported back to Members in 
due course. 

Action Timescales

Survey designed Prior to Cabinet 

Print 12 – 23 Nov (10 working days)

Page 11



Live on-line From 26 Nov

Distribution of hard copies 26 Nov – 7 Dec (10 working days)

Consultation period 26 Nov – 21 Dec (4 weeks)

Postal replies handling; Data input for 
paper copies initial cross tab analysis

Ongoing up to 11 January 2019 (3 
weeks)

Report compiled by Customer Insight 
Officer

12 – 18 Jan 2019 (5 working days) 

Alternative Options

3.1 The Council could decide not to carry out it’s own consultation exercise but, given the 
importance to seek and be able to properly represent the views of residents and 
stakeholders views on the significant issue of local government reorganisation this is not 
the preferred option. 

3.2 A consultation exercise could simply be carried out online. This would not incur the 
additional cost set out below, but will not come to the attention of all residents and 
businesses in the Borough and from previous experience will not generate the same 
response level as a hard copy document.

Financial Implications

4. The estimated costs of printing and delivering consultation document to residents and 
businesses within the borough and collating the results is £20,000. This cannot be 
contained within existing consultation budgets. A budget for this proposal can be 
established by approval of a virement from underspends identified in quarter 2 budget 
monitoring. A virement proposal for this purpose is included in the Quarterly Gedling 
Plan Performance and Monitoring Report which appears elsewhere on this agenda. 

Appendices

5.1 Appendix 1- County Council consultation questions.

5.2 Appendix 2 - Proposed Consultation document – To follow.

Background Papers

6. None identified.

Reasons for Recommendation

7. To enable the Council to obtain the views of residents and businesses in the borough, 
which will inform the Borough Council’s response to the County Council’s proposals for 
local government reorganisation. 

Page 12



Appendix 1

There are currently eight separate councils (excluding the City of Nottingham) 
across different parts of Nottinghamshire in a ‘two-tier’ structure, in which 
services are divided between the County Council and seven Borough or 
District councils.

1. Before reading the County Council’s engagement document and/or this 
questionnaire, were you aware that there are 8 separate councils providing 
services across different parts of Nottinghamshire?

2. How informed or uninformed do you feel about which services are provided by 
your Borough/District Council and which are provided by the County Council?

3. Overall, how informed or uninformed do you feel about how local government 
takes important decisions affecting you?

4. To what extent do you agree or disagree that the council’s Engagement 
Document is clear and easy to understand?

5. To what extent do you agree or disagree that the eight two-tier 
Nottinghamshire councils need to make changes to respond to these 
challenges?

6. Please rate how important you think each of these factors is:
a. Accountability
b. Quality
c. Civic identity
d. Access
e. Value for Money

The County Council’s current thinking is that it is time to consider options to 
simplify local government for residents and business, improve value for 
money, and be more sustainable by replacing the current two-tier system with 
a unitary (single-tier) system. None of the options the County Council is 
considering would change the status of Nottingham City Council.

1. Thinking only about the eight two-tier councils, do you agree or disagree that 
there is a case for reducing the number of councils in Nottinghamshire?

2. To what extent do you agree or disagree with the principle of replacing the 
two-tier system with a unitary council system to run local government across 
Nottinghamshire?

3. If you disagree with unitary councils for Nottinghamshire, please think about 
other possible alternatives (including the status quo), and then use the box 
below to explain what you think the County Council should consider.

4. If unitary councils were to be proposed, do you think it would be better for 
services to be provided by ONE unitary council providing all services for the 
whole county (excluding Nottingham City Council, which would be 
unaffected), or by TWO unitary councils providing services for different parts 
of the county (excluding the City)?

Page 13



Appendix 1

5. Are there any other comments you would like to make, or options that you 
would like to suggest, about the possible reorganisation of local government 
in Nottinghamshire?

Page 14



Report to Cabinet

Subject: Prudential Code Indicator Monitoring 2018/19 and Quarterly 
Treasury Activity Report for Quarter ended 30 September 2018

Date: 8 November 2018

Author: Deputy Chief Executive and Director of Finance

Wards Affected

All

Purpose

To inform Members of the performance monitoring of the 2018/19 
Prudential Code Indicators, and to advise Members of the quarterly treasury 
activity as required by the Treasury Management Strategy. 

Key Decision

This is not a key decision.

Recommendation

That:

1. Members note the report, together with the Treasury Activity 
Report 2018/19 for Quarter 2, at Appendix 1, and the 
Prudential and Treasury Indicator Monitoring 2018/19 for 
Quarter 2, at Appendix 3. 

Background

1.1 The Council is required by regulations issued under the Local Government Act 
2003 to report on its Prudential Code indicators and treasury activity. This 
report meets the requirements of both the CIPFA Code of Practice on Treasury 
Management (the Code) and the CIPFA Prudential Code for Capital Finance in 
Local Authorities (the Prudential Code). 

1.2 For 2018/19 the minimum reporting requirements are that the Full Council 

Page 15

Agenda Item 5



should receive the following reports: 

 An annual Treasury Strategy in advance of the year (the TMSS, considered 
by Cabinet on 15 February 2018 and subsequently approved by Full 
Council on 5 March 2018);

 A mid-year treasury update report (this report);
 An annual review following the end of the year describing the activity 

compared to the Strategy.

In accordance with best practice, quarterly monitoring reports for treasury 
activity are provided to Members, and this exceeds the minimum requirements. 

1.3   The regulatory environment places responsibility on Members for the review and 
scrutiny of treasury management policy and activities.  This report provides 
details of the position at 30 September 2018 and highlights compliance with the 
Council’s policies.

Proposal

2.1    Economic update

UK - economic growth in the first half of 2018/19 has been modest, but 
sufficiently robust for the Monetary Policy Committee (MPC) to vote 
unanimously to increase Bank Rate from 0.5% to 0.75% on 2 August 2018.   
Although growth for the year is expected to be only around 1.5% in 2018, 
the Bank of England’s (BOE) August Quarterly Inflation Report forecast that 
this will pick up to 1.8% in 2019, albeit with several caveats – mainly related 
to whether or not the UK achieves an orderly withdrawal from the European 
Union in March 2019.

Some MPC members have expressed concern about a build-up of 
inflationary pressures, particularly with the pound again falling in value 
against both the US dollar and the Euro.  The Consumer Price Index (CPI) 
measure of inflation rose unexpectedly from 2.4% in June to 2.7% in August 
due to increases in volatile components, but is expected to fall back to the 
2% inflation target over the next two years given a scenario of minimal 
increases in Bank Rate.  The MPC has indicated that Bank Rate would 
need to be in the region of 1.5% by March 2021 for inflation to stay on track.  
Financial markets are currently pricing in the next increase in Bank Rate for 
the second half of 2019.

Unemployment has continued at a 43 year low of 4%, and a combination of 
job vacancies hitting an all-time high in July, and negligible growth in total 
employment, indicates that employers are having major difficulties filling job 
vacancies with suitable staff.  It was therefore unsurprising that wage 
inflation picked up to a 3 month average of 2.9%, with the figure for July at 

Page 16



3.1%. This means that in real terms, (ie. wage rates higher than CPI 
inflation), earnings grew by about 0.4%, near to the high of 0.5% since 
2009. The UK economy is largely services sector driven, therefore an 
increase in household spending power is likely to feed through to provide 
some support to the overall rate of economic growth in the coming months. 
This tends to confirm that the MPC were right to start on a cautious 
increase in Bank Rate in August, as it views wage inflation in excess of 3% 
as increasing inflationary pressures within the economy.  However, it will 
need to tread cautiously with further rises, especially given the uncertainties 
around Brexit.  
Politically, there is a risk that the current Conservative minority government 
may be unable to muster a Commons majority over Brexit.  However, the 
Link Asset Services (LAS) central view is that it will endure, despite any 
setbacks, on the route to Brexit in March 2019.  If, however, the UK faces a 
general election in the next 12 months, this could result in a potential 
loosening of monetary policy and therefore medium to longer dated gilt 
yields could rise on the expectation of a weak pound and concerns around 
inflation picking up.

USA - President Trump’s easing of fiscal policy has fuelled a temporary 
boost in US consumption which has generated not only an upturn in the rate 
of growth from 2.2% in Q1 to 4.2% in Q2, but also an upturn in inflationary 
pressures.  With inflation moving towards 3%, the Federal Reserve (Fed) 
increased rates by another 0.25% in September, making four increases in 
2018, and indicated that they expected to increase rates four more times by 
the end of 2019.   

EU - growth was unchanged at 0.4% in Q2, but has fallen short of early 
forecasts for a stronger economic performance in 2018. In particular, data 
from Germany has been mixed and it could be negatively impacted by US 
tariffs on a significant part of its manufacturing exports, e.g. cars.   For that 
reason, although EU growth is still expected to be around 2% for 2018, the 
horizon is less clear than it seemed just a short while ago. 

China - economic growth has been weakening over successive years, 
despite repeated rounds of central bank stimulus and medium term risks 
are increasing. Major progress still needs to be made to eliminate excess 
industrial capacity and the stock of unsold property, and to address the level 
of non-performing loans in the banking and credit systems.

Japan has been struggling to stimulate consistent significant GDP growth 
and to get inflation up to its target of 2%, despite huge monetary and fiscal 
stimulus. It is also making little progress on fundamental reform of the 
economy. 

Page 17



2.2    Interest rate forecast

The Council’s treasury advisers, Link Asset Services undertook its last 
review of interest rate forecasts on 7 August, after the quarterly Bank of 
England Inflation Report, and the MPC meeting on 2 August at which Bank 
Rate was increased from 0.5% to 0.75%. 

The MPC emphasised again that future rate rises would be gradual and to a 
lower equilibrium rate than before the financial crash, ie. a rate where 
monetary policy is neither expansionary nor contractionary. MPC indications 
are that this may be around 2.5% in 2028, but they declined to give a 
medium term forecast. The LAS view is that a further rate rise in February, 
just before the Brexit deadline, is unlikely and that this is most likely to come 
in August 2019, followed by two more rises of 0.25% in May and November 
2020 to reach 1.5%. However, the cautious pace of even these limited 
increases is dependent on a reasonably orderly Brexit.

The overall balance of risk to economic growth in the UK is probably 
neutral. The balance of risks to increases in Bank Rate and shorter term 
PWLB rates are probably also even, and are broadly dependent on how 
strong GDP growth turns out, and how quickly and how positively the Brexit 
negotiations move forward.
 
Link Asset Services (LAS) have provided the following forecast:

2.3   Investment strategy

The Treasury Management Strategy Statement (TMSS) for 2018/19, which 
includes the Annual Investment Strategy, was approved by Council on 5 
March 2018, and sets out the Council’s investment priorities as:

 security of capital;
 liquidity;

Page 18



 yield

Whilst the Council will always seek to obtain the optimum return (yield) on 
its investments, this will at all times be commensurate with proper levels of 
security and liquidity. In the current economic climate it is considered 
appropriate either to keep investments short term to cover cash flow needs, 
or to extend the period up to 12 months with highly rated financial 
institutions, selected by the use of the LAS creditworthiness methodology 
(see below) which includes consideration of sovereign ratings.

Investment counterparty limits for 2018/19 are generally £3m per individual 
counterparty, however a higher limit of £4m per Money Market Fund is 
considered prudent since such funds are already by definition highly 
diversified investment vehicles.  The Chief Financial Officer has delegated 
authority to vary these limits as appropriate, and to report any change to 
Cabinet as part of the next quarterly report. The limits have not been 
exceeded during the period 1 April to 30 September 2018.
 
During the period from 1 April to 30 September 2018, significant use has 
been made of the Council’s two Money Market Funds (MMFs).  These are 
AAA rated investment vehicles which allow the pooling of many billions of 
pounds into highly diversified funds, thus reducing risk. The current rate of 
return on these funds is around 0.63%, and this is generally higher than 
overnight treasury deposit rates and of the rate obtainable from the Debt 
Management Office (DMO). 

An investment of £1m was made in the CCLA Local Authority Property 
Fund (LAPF) on 1 December 2017. The LAPF is a local government 
investment scheme approved by the Treasury under the Trustee 
Investments Act 1961 (section 11). Dividends are currently averaging 
around 4% per annum and are treated as revenue income. This investment 
has allowed the Council to introduce a property element into its investment 
portfolio without the risks associated with the direct purchase of assets. The 
main risk around Property Funds is the preservation of the capital sum, 
however evidence from recent years shows that over time the property 
market has been a positive long-term investment. It is accordingly 
anticipated that this investment will be held for at least five years to 
minimise any risk.

The property fund investment purchased a number of units, determined by 
the unit price on the entry date, valuing the initial £1m investment at £936k 
and setting the entry fee at £64k, or 6.4%.  As indicated above, the property 
fund investment is for the long-term, and it is expected that this will be 
recovered as the fund grows, however for prudence an equivalent 
contribution of £64,000 was made to an earmarked reserve in 2017/18, and 
this will be used to mitigate the impact on the General Fund of any future 

Page 19



significant valuation movements arising from the accounting changes being 
introduced in 2018/19.

The Treasury Activity Report for the quarter ended 30 September 2018 is 
attached at Appendix 1, in accordance with the Treasury Management 
Strategy. For reference, definitions of LIBOR and LIBID are given at 
Appendix 2.

Members will note that investment interest of £57,981 was generated from 
MMF activity, term deposits with banks and building societies, and the 
property fund, during the period from 1 April to 30 September 2018. This 
represents an overall equated rate for the Council of 0.93% and 
outperforms the benchmark 7 day LIBID rate, which averaged 0.43% for the 
same period. In cash terms this represents additional income to the General 
Fund of around £31,200 and was achieved by positive investment 
management and a favourable return on the property fund. Performance in 
respect of the longer 3 month LIBID rate, which averaged 0.60%, still 
represents additional income of £20,600.

Despite the recent Bank Rate rise, rates in the market remain low, and this 
is likely to continue following the UK’s vote to leave the EU. As loans 
mature every effort is made to replace them at favourable rates, however 
security and liquidity will always be the overriding factors in the Council’s 
treasury management. LAS currently forecast that Bank Rate is unlikely to 
rise again until August 2019, however there is much uncertainty and interest 
rates are still expected to rise only gradually, and not significantly. 

It is currently anticipated that the outturn for investment interest will be 
£110,000, an increase of £24,000 on the current approved estimate of 
£86,000 for 2018/19. The impact of this increase is included in the Q2 
revenue budget monitoring report elsewhere on this agenda.

Credit ratings advice is taken from LAS and the Chief Financial Officer has 
adopted the LAS credit rating methodology for the selection of investment 
counterparties. This employs a sophisticated modelling approach utilising 
credit ratings from all three of the main rating agencies to give a suggested 
maximum duration for investments. Accordingly it does not place undue 
reliance on any one agency’s ratings.

The methodology subsequently applies an “overlay” to take account of 
positive and negative credit watches and/or credit outlook information, 
which may increase or decrease the suggested duration of investments. It 
then applies a second overlay based on the credit default swap spreads for 
institutions, the monitoring of which has been shown to give an early 
warning of likely changes in credit ratings. It also incorporates sovereign 
ratings to ensure selection of counterparties from only the most creditworthy 

Page 20



countries. The current Treasury Strategy permits the use of any UK 
counterparties subject to their individual credit ratings under the LAS 
methodology. It also permits the use of counterparties from other countries 
with a minimum sovereign rating of AA. For information, the UK currently 
has a rating of AA.

The LAS modelling approach combines all the various factors in a weighted 
scoring system and results in a series of colour coded bands which indicate 
the creditworthiness of counterparties. The colour bandings are as follows:

 Yellow       5 years (UK Government debt or its equivalent)
 Purple       2 years
 Blue          1 year (nationalised or semi nationalised UK banks only)
 Orange     1 year
 Red           6 months
 Green       100 days 
 No colour  not to be used 

Credit ratings are monitored weekly and the Council is also alerted to 
interim changes by its use of the LAS creditworthiness service, however 
ratings under the methodology, including sovereign ratings, will not 
necessarily be the sole determinant of the quality of an institution. Other 
information sources used will include the financial press, share price and 
other such information pertaining to the banking sector in order to establish 
the most robust scrutiny process on the suitability of potential investment 
counterparties.

The ultimate decision on what is prudent and manageable for the 
Council will be taken by the Chief Financial Officer under the approved 
scheme of delegation.

2.4   New borrowing

No new long-term borrowing was undertaken during the quarter ended 30 
September 2018. 

The Council’s Capital Financing Requirement (CFR) represents its 
underlying need to borrow to finance capital investment. Due to favourable 
interest rates, borrowing in advance of need is sometimes desirable, with 
the result that the CFR can differ to the actual borrowing planned in the 
year. Updated investment guidance issued in February 2018 confirms that 
borrowing in advance of need purely to profit from the investment of the 
extra sums borrowed, rather than prudent early borrowing for a service 
objective, is however unlawful.

Page 21



£1m of planned borrowing in 2017/18 did not take place, and It is currently 
anticipated that this £1m, plus the estimated £2.5m for 2018/19 will be 
undertaken during the year, at a point when interest rates are deemed most 
favourable by the Chief Financial Officer in conjunction with LAS. Interest 
rates remain low and the PWLB certainty rate, available to all authorities 
providing relevant information to CLG, allows the Council to take advantage 
of a discount of 20 basis points. 

As any 2018/19 borrowing activity will now be during the second half of the 
year it is currently anticipated that the outturn for PWLB interest payable will 
be £291,700, which is a reduction of £14,500 on the current approved 
estimate of £306,200. The impact of this reduction is included in the Q2 
revenue budget monitoring report elsewhere on this agenda.

The Council has embarked upon a commercialisation programme aimed at 
the generation of funding to replace central government support, which is 
scheduled to be withdrawn by 2020. Significant additional borrowing may be 
required to support this commercial programme, and this will be supported 
by individual business case assessments and appropriate budget 
approvals, to demonstrate that each project generates a return sufficient to 
cover any borrowing costs. Advice will be taken from LAS with regard to the 
amount and timing of any additional borrowing, and should conditions 
become advantageous, some borrowing in advance of need will also be 
considered by the Chief Financial Officer.
 
Whilst borrowing rates remain historically low, investment rates are also 
very low, and serious consideration must be given to the cost of carrying 
any additional borrowing during the period prior to it being required for the 
financing of capital expenditure since this places a further burden on the 
General Fund.

2.5   Debt rescheduling

Debt rescheduling opportunities are limited in the current economic climate, 
and due to the structure of interest rates. Advice in this regard will continue 
to be taken from LAS. No debt rescheduling has been undertaken during 
the period from 1 April to 30 September 2018. 

2.6   Compliance with Prudential and treasury indicators

It is a statutory duty for the Council to determine and keep under review the 
affordable borrowing limit. The Council’s approved Prudential and Treasury 
Indicators (affordability limits) are included in the Treasury Management 
Strategy Statement (TMSS) approved by Full Council on 5 March 2018. 

During the financial year to date the Council has at all times operated within 

Page 22



the treasury limits and Prudential Indicators set out in the Council’s TMSS, 
and in compliance with the Council's Treasury Management Practices.  The 
Prudential and Treasury Indicators as at 30 September 2018 are shown at 
Appendix 3.

a) Prudential Indicators:

These indicators are based on estimates of expected outcomes, and are 
key indicators of “affordability”.  They are monitored on a quarterly basis, 
and Appendix 3 compares the approved indicators with the projected 
outturn for 2018/19, and shows variances on some of the indicators, as 
described below: 

i) Capital Expenditure

The latest projected outturn shows that capital expenditure is expected to 
be £9,775,600. This differs to the original estimate of £8,374,000 due to 
the inclusion of approved carry-forward requests from 2017/18 and to 
proposed variations to the capital programme during 2018/19.
 

ii) Capital Financing Requirement (CFR)

The projected closing CFR for 2018/19 is £14,710,500. This differs to the 
approved indicator of £15,086,500, due to savings on the 2017/18 capital 
programme and slippage of schemes to 2018/19, both of which reduced 
the borrowing requirement in that year, and to proposed variations to the 
capital programme during 2018/19.

iii) Ratio of Financing Costs to Net Revenue Stream

The projected outturn of 7.18% differs to the approved indicator of 7.49% 
due to reductions in MRP arising from the savings and slippage on the 
capital programme in 2017/18, and to additional investment interest. 
These reductions are partially offset by increased revenue contributions to 
capital expenditure.

iv) Maximum gross debt

The Council must ensure that its gross debt does not, except in the short 
term, exceed the opening capital financing requirement, plus estimates of 
any additional CFR for 2018/19 and the following two financial years.  This 
allows flexibility for early borrowing for future years, but ensures that 
borrowing is not undertaken for revenue purposes. The Council’s gross 
debt at 30 September 2018 was £6.812m which was well within the 
approved indicator.

Page 23



b) Treasury Management Indicators:

These indicators are based on limits, beyond which activities should not 
pass without management action.  They include two key indicators of 
affordability and four key indicators of prudence.

Affordability:

i) Operational boundary for external debt

This is the limit which external debt is not “normally” expected to exceed.  In 
most cases, this would be a similar figure to the CFR, but it may be lower or 
higher depending on the levels of actual debt.

ii) Authorised limit for external debt 

This limit represents a control on the “maximum” level of borrowing. It is 
the statutory limit determined under s3 (1) of the Local Government Act 
2003 and represents the limit beyond which external debt is prohibited. 
The Authorised Limit must be set, and revised if necessary, by Full 
Council.  It reflects a level of external debt which, while not desirable, 
could be afforded in the short term, but is not sustainable in the longer 
term.  The Government retains an option to control either the total of all 
councils’ plans, or those of a specific council, although this power has not 
yet been exercised

Prudence:

iii) Interest rate exposure
 
Prior to the December 2017 revisions to the Treasury Management Code 
there was a requirement to set indicators for the Council’s maximum exposure 
to fixed and variable interest rates for net borrowing (ie. external borrowing 
less investments). This requirement has now been removed in favour of a 
statement in the TMSS stating how interest rate exposure is managed and 
monitored by the Council, and this is given below:

The Council has a general preference for fixed rate borrowing in order to 
minimse uncertainty and ensure stability in the charge to revenue, however it 
is acknowledged that in certain circumstances, some variable rate borrowing 
may be prudent, for example if interest rates are expected to fall.  The 
Council’s investments are generally for cashflow purposes and accordingly a 
mix of fixed and variable rates will be used to maximise  flexibility and liquidity. 
Interest rate exposure will be managed and monitored on a daily basis by the 
Chief Financial Officer.

Page 24



Local indicators, simply for the proportions of fixed and variable rate loans, 
have been retained by the Council for information purposes.

iv)Maximum new principal sums to be invested during 2018/19 for periods in 
excess of one year (365 days) such investments are classified as a “non-
specified”. This indicator is subject to the overall limit for non-specified 
investments set out in the TMSS, and to the overall limit per counterparty. 

v) Upper limits for the maturity structure of borrowing - set to reduce the 
Council’s exposure to large fixed rate sums falling due for refinancing.

Appendix 3 shows the actual position as at 30 September 2018, and 
demonstrates that all activities are contained within the currently approved 
limits.

2.7     Other Issues 

i) Revised Cipfa Codes of Practice

As previously reported to Members, revised editions of the Prudential 
Code and the Treasury Management Code and Cross Sectoral Guidance 
Notes were published in December 2017, with changes effective from 
2018/19. These focus particularly on how to deal with local authority 
investments which are not “treasury investments”, eg. property purchases, 
in order to generate income for the authority at a higher level than can be 
attained by treasury investments. The revised Codes acknowledge the 
drive for income generation and the use of non-treasury related 
investment instruments, such as investment property, but they reiterate 
the need for risk management - including proportionality in respect of 
overall resources.

Additional indicators relating to non-treasury investments will be 
considered during the development of the Council’s Treasury Strategy 
(TMSS) and Capital Strategy for 2019/20, and advice will also be sought 
from Link Asset Services.

ii) Revised Investment and MRP Guidance

As previously reported, the Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local 
Government (MHCLG) issued revised Investment Guidance and Minimum 
Revenue Provision (MRP) Guidance in February 2018, again for 
implementation in 2018/19. The definition of “investment” has been 
changed to include expenditure driven activity, eg. commercial property, 
as well as simple treasury cash. Such activity would represent “non-
treasury investments”, ie investments in “non-financial assets”.

Page 25



The revised MRP guidance also focuses on expenditure on non-financial 
investments, eg. property, making it clear that the duty to make MRP 
extends to investment property where its acquisition has been partially or 
fully funded by an increase in borrowing. The guidance also confirms that 
borrowing may only be undertaken for strategic purposes and not purely 
for financial return.

Alternative Options

There are no alternative options in that this report is a requirement of the 
Council’s Treasury Management Strategy Statement (TMSS). 

Financial Implications 

No specific financial implications are attributable to this report.

Appendices

1. Treasury Activity Report 2018/19 for Quarter 2 (30 September 2018)
2. Definitions of LIBOR and LIBID
3. Prudential and Treasury Indicator Monitoring 2018/19 for Quarter 2

(30 September 2018).

Background Papers

None identified.

Reasons for Recommendation

To comply with the requirements of the Council’s Treasury Management 
Strategy Statement.

For more information, please contact:

Alison Ball, Financial Services Manager, on 0115 901 3980 

Page 26



TREASURY ACTIVITY REPORT 2018/19 Appendix 1

For Quarter ended 30 September 2018

Position @ Loans Made Loans Repaid Position @

1 July 2018 During  Q2 During Q2 30 Sept 2018

£ £ £ £

Long Term Borrowing

PWLB 6,811,577 0 0 6,811,577

  Total Long Term Borrowing 6,811,577 0 0 6,811,577

Temporary Borrowing

Local Authorities 0 0 0 0

Central Government 0 0 0 0

Banks & Other Institutions 0 0 0 0

  Total Temporary Borrowing 0 0 0 0

TOTAL BORROWING 6,811,577 0 0 6,811,577

Long Term Investment

CCLA  LAPF Property Fund (1,000,000) 0 0 (1,000,000)

  Total Long Term Investment (1,000,000) 0 0 (1,000,000)

Short Term Investment

Bank of Scotland (3,000,000) (1,000,000) 1,000,000 (3,000,000)

Blackrock Money Market Fund (4,000,000) (12,450,000) 12,450,000 (4,000,000)

Barclays 0 0 0 0

 Debt Management Office 0 0 0 0

Goldman Sachs (3,000,000) (3,000,000) 3,000,000 (3,000,000)

HSBC Treasury (340,000) (10,235,000) 9,575,000 (1,000,000)

Ignis Money Market Fund (Std Life) (2,420,000) (10,110,000) 11,190,000 (1,340,000)

 Local Authorities & Other 0 0 0 0

 Nationwide 0 0 0 0

Santander (3,000,000) (2,000,000) 3,000,000 (2,000,000)

  Total Short Term Investment (15,760,000) (38,795,000) 40,215,000 (14,340,000)

TOTAL INVESTMENT (See below) (16,760,000) (38,795,000) 40,215,000 (15,340,000)

NET BORROWING / 

(INVESTMENT) (9,948,423) (38,795,000) 40,215,000 (8,528,423)

Temporary Borrowing & Investment Statistics at 30 September 2018

Investment:

Fixed Rate Investment (9,340,000) (14,235,000) 16,575,000 (7,000,000)

Variable Rate Investment (7,420,000) (24,560,000) 23,640,000 (8,340,000)

TOTAL INVESTMENT (16,760,000) (38,795,000) 40,215,000 (15,340,000)

Proportion of Fixed Rate Investment 45.63%

Proportion of Variable Rate Investment 54.37%

Temporary Investment Interest Receivable 57,981£          

Equated Temporary Investment 6,223,751£     

Weighted Average Interest Rate Received (Interest Receivable / Equated Investment) 0.93%

7 Day LIBID (Benchmark) 0.43%

3 Month LIBID 0.60%

Borrowing:

Temporary Borrowing Interest Payable -£               

Equated Temporary Borrowing -£               

Weighted Average Interest Rate Paid (Interest Payable / Equated Borrowing) n/a

7 Day LIBOR (Benchmark) 0.00%

If LIBID Better by

7 Day 26,808 31,173

3 Month 37,407            20,574            
Page 27



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 2 
 

LIBOR - the London Interbank Offered Rate 
 

LIBOR is the interest rate at which the London banks are willing to offer funds in the 
inter-bank market. It is the average of rates which five major London banks are willing 
to lend £10 million for a period of three or six months, and is the benchmark rate for 
setting interest rates for adjustable-rate loans and financial instruments. 
 
ie. the London banks are LENDING to each other, which affects the rate at which the 
banks will lend to other parties eg. local authorities, ie. Gedling are BORROWING 
money 

 

LIBID -  the Interbank BID (LIBID) rate  

LIBID is the interest rate at which London banks are willing to borrow from one another 
in the inter-bank market. It is the average of rates which five major London banks 
willing to bid for a £10 million deposit for a period of three or six months.  

 
ie. the London banks are BORROWING from each other, which affects the  rates at 
which they will borrow from other parties eg. local authorities, ie. Gedling are LENDING 

money. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 29



This page is intentionally left blank



Prudential Indicators for 2018/19 Appendix 3
1 April to 30 September 2018

2018/19 2018/19
Original Position at

Estimate 30-Sep-18
1. Prudential Indicators (Council 5/3/18)

Affordability:

a) Capital Expenditure £ 8,374,000 £ 9,775,600
b) Capital Financing Requirement £ 15,086,500 £ 14,710,500
c) Ratio of Financing Costs to Net Revenue Stream 7.49% 7.18%
e) Maximum Gross Debt £ 16,849,000 £ 6,811,577

2. Treasury Management Indicators

a) Operational Boundary for External Debt:
   Borrowing £ 17,800,000 £ 6,811,577
   Other Long Term Liabilities £ 1,500,000 £ -
   Total Operational Boundary £ 19,300,000 £ 6,811,577

b) Authorised Limit for External Debt:
   Borrowing £ 18,800,000 £ 6,811,577
   Other Long Term Liabilities £ 1,500,000 £ -
   Total Authorised Limit £ 20,300,000 £ 6,811,577

c) Upper limit for fixed interest rate exposure:
(Maximum outstanding net BORROWING)
    Local Indicator  - Investment Only 100.00% 45.63%
    Local Indicator  - Borrowing Only 100.00% 100.00%

d) Upper limit for variable interest rate exposure:
(Maximum outstanding net BORROWING)
    Local Indicator  - Investment Only 100.00% 54.37%
    Local Indicator  - Borrowing Only 50.00% 0.00%

e) Upper & Lower limits for the maturity structure
of outstanding Borrowing during 2018/19:
    Under 1 Year U   40%, L 0% 0%
    1 Year to 2 Years U   40%, L 0% 0%
    2 Years to 5 Years U   50%, L 0% 0%
    5 Years to 10 Years  U   50%, L 0% 0%
    Over 10 Years U 100%, L 0% 100%

f) Investment Treasury Indicator and limit:
Max. NEW principal sums invested in-year for periods
OVER 364 days (ie. non-specified), subject to maximum
non specified per counterparty of £3m AND to the prevailing
overall counterparty limit AND to the the TOTAL non
specified limit of £5m. £ 3,000,000 £ -

Page 31



This page is intentionally left blank



Report to Cabinet

Subject: Quarterly Gedling Plan Performance and Budget Monitoring.

Date: 8 November 2018

Author: Senior Leadership Team

Wards Affected

Borough-wide

Purpose
 To inform Cabinet of the performance against Improvement Actions and 

Performance Indicators in the 2018/19 Gedling Plan.

 To update Cabinet on the likely outturn of the Revenue and Capital Budgets for 
the 2018/19 financial year. The budgets include all carried forward amounts 
from the 2017/18 financial year.

 To request Cabinet approval for the budget changes outlined in this report.

Key Decision

This is a Key Decision.

Recommendations

Members are recommended:

a) To note the progress against Improvement Actions and Performance 
Indicators in the 2018/19 Gedling Plan;

b) To agree the amendments to the performance indicator targets set out in 
paragraph 2.1.7;

c) To approve the General Fund Revenue Budget virements included in 
Appendix 1;

d) To note the use of reserves and funds during quarter one as detailed in 
Appendix 2;

e) To approve the changes to the capital programme included in paragraph 
2.2.3. 

Page 33

Agenda Item 6



Background

1.1 The Council has made a commitment to closely align budget and performance 
management.  This is in line with accepted good practice.

1.2 To deliver this commitment, systems to monitor performance against revenue 
and capital budgets, improvement activity and performance indicators have all 
been brought together and are embedded in the way the Council works. 

1.3 In addition, performance reports focus more directly on the Council’s priorities 
and offer an “early warning” system of instances where targets may not be 
secured.

1.4 As usual, comprehensive details about current performance against the 
Gedling Plan can be accessed through the following link on the Council's 
website:- 

http://www.gedling.gov.uk/council/aboutus/prioritiesplansandperformance/how
weredoing/

Members are recommended to view this document which provides valuable 
background detail to this summary paper. It provides a more in-depth review 
of indicators, actions and outcomes for quarter 2.  

1.5 A full set of papers that appear on the website have been printed and these 
reports are available in the Members’ Room. They contain explanations of 
variances from expected performance together with trend arrows for all the 
performance indicators within the Gedling Plan (note that an upward arrow 
indicates improved performance, irrespective of whether improvement is 
represented by a higher or lower value) and progress bars for all Gedling Plan 
actions showing progress made against project milestones. 

1.6 The assessment criteria used for actions and indicators is based on red, 
amber and green traffic light symbols. To be assessed as green performance 
indicators must be in line with their expected performance at this stage of the 
year, whilst actions must be on target against the “completed” or “in progress” 
milestones determined within the performance management system, Pentana. 

 
Proposal

2 Quarterly Progress Report

2.1 Current Performance Information

2.1.1 Overall performance at quarter 2 against the 2018/19 Gedling Plan actions 
and indicators shows the following:

Page 34

http://www.gedling.gov.uk/council/aboutus/prioritiesplansandperformance/howweredoing/
http://www.gedling.gov.uk/council/aboutus/prioritiesplansandperformance/howweredoing/


Actions

2.1.2 Twelve of the 77 Gedling Plan actions are completed, with the remaining 
either in progress, deferred or assigned to an Officer. It must be noted that the 
data in this report refers to the second quarter of the financial year only and it 
is expected that actions identified for the year will be met.

Page 35



Indicators 

2.1.3 Overall indicator performance at the end of quarter 2 shows that out of a total 
of 34 indicators, 21 were on or above target, 2 were slightly below target and 
8 indicators missed their target. One indicator is for tracking purposes only 
and for two indicators the data was not available at the time of drafting this 
report. There is no significant change in performance from quarter 1:

2.1.4 Examples of particularly positive performance during quarter 2 include:

 The number of theatre events/shows taking place at the Bonington 
Theatre was 247 against a target of 173 and the number of cinema 
shows was 150 against a target of 87.  This generated an income of 
£36,530 for Quarter 2 against a target of £19,845.

 93.9% of calls to the customer contact centre were answered, against a 
target of 90%. This performance is against a backdrop of the 
implementation of a restructure, re-profiling of staffing levels and 
training Customer Services Advisers in new roles.

 The annual target of 6 school-age work experience placements hosted 
has already been achieved.

 Only 1% of surveyed streets in the Borough had unacceptable levels of 
litter, against a target of 2%

 7 long-term empty homes in the Borough were returned to use in 
quarter 2 (against a target of 5) and the yearly target of 20 empty 
homes has already been exceeded.

Page 36



 The percentage of planning applications processed in all categories 
(major, minor and other) is well within targets set.  In particular, 100% 
of major planning applications were processed within 13 weeks during 
quarter 2 (against a target of 90%).

2.1.5 Of the 8 indicators shown red at the end of quarter 2, 2 are expected to 
improve and be on target at the year end. However Service Managers have 
indicated that 6 indicators are expected to miss or be slightly behind target at 
year end despite management action. The following indicators are worthy of 
note at this stage:

Housing Needs and welfare support

During quarter 2 the average time to process new Housing Benefit claims (in 
calendar days) was 14.3 days against a target of 13 days. Performance 
continues to be in the top 5% nationally; however performance has 
temporarily dipped due to the volume and complexity of claims received by 
the team. Whilst it is expected to miss target at year end, some improvement 
is anticipated by the end of the year due to changes in processes.

The average length of time spent in temporary accommodation (in weeks) is 
19.2 weeks against a target of 8 weeks and is expected to miss target at year 
end. New legislation introduced on 1 April 2018 (Homelessness Reduction 
Act) requires the council to provide 56 days for temporary accommodation 
relief instead of the previous 28 days. This is very much demand led and 
totally dependent on Gedling Homes, Housing Associations and Private 
Sector properties being available for temporary accommodation, of which 
there are very few. The Council has only 11 temporary accommodation 
properties of its own and these are consistently full. Officers have recently 
leased 2 further properties from Gedling homes to relieve some of the 
pressure on bed and breakfast accommodation. In reality the situation will not 
improve until there are more homes available for either private rental or 
ownership, and this will be entirely down to affordability.

Housing

Whilst quarter 1 showed encouraging signs of the anticipated delivery of 
additional homes, 76 net additional homes were provided against a target of 
120 and no affordable homes were delivered during quarter 2.  Both indicators 
are expected to miss target at year end.

The adoption of the Local Planning Document at Council on 18th July 
released additional sites from the green belt for development. The trajectory 
for housing delivery confirms a five year land supply and an increase in the 
number of homes to be delivered. Although no affordable homes have been 
delivered this quarter, 8 discount for sale properties are due to complete in 
quarter 3 at Spring Farm.  There is the potential for more S.106 affordable 
homes to complete during the remaining quarters and local registered 
providers are looking at several sites currently.

Page 37



Waste

The residual household waste per household in Kg has missed target at the 
end of quarter 2 and is expected to miss target at year end. The increased 
figure is due to the increase in the number of loads rejected due to 
contamination of recycling bins by nappies, food, textiles and glass. Work is 
progressing with the County Council and Veolia to improve the communication 
around what can and cannot be recycled in order to reduce the contamination 
levels.

Jobs and Employment

The percentage of working age people on Job Seekers' Allowance and 
percentage of young people (18-24 year olds) claiming Job Seeker Allowance 
both show a slight increase from quarter 1 and have missed target at end of 
quarter 2. The former is expected to miss target at year end but the latter 
should improve and be on target.

The increase in percentage reflects only a few additional claimants and is not 
unusual at this time of year when there is often a temporary spike in the 
figures due to full time education leavers. The Council continues to work with 
the DWP to develop targeted employment events such as the Careers event 
held on 2nd October and further Taster Session on 27 November.  
Training/skills opportunities are also shared and promoted via participants of 
the Employment & Skills Group.

A date has also been confirmed for the annual Apprenticeship Fair (26 Feb) 
and preventative employability events have been programmed for the 
academic year with our secondary schools – including interview skills, Speed 
Networking and Have a Go Sessions with local employers. These events are 
aimed at preventing individuals from becoming NEET (Not in Education, 
Employment or Training).

Crime and Anti-Social behaviour

The level of all Crime across Gedling Borough rate per 1000 population has 
just missed target at the end of quarter 2 with 13.5 recorded crimes against a 
target of 13.2 but is expected to be on target at the year end. Recorded crime 
for quarter 2 has shown a decrease of 152 incidents compared to the previous 
quarter but an overall increase of 6.6% (204 offences) compared to the period 
April to September 2017.  Members are the note however, this increase is 
less than South Notts Community Partnership as a whole, which has an 
overall increase of 9.1% compared to the same period last year.

The level of recorded anti-social behaviour across Gedling Borough (per 1000 
population) has missed target at the end of quarter 2 with 4.5 recorded 
incidents against a target of 3.9, but is expected to be on target at year end. 
Recorded anti-social behaviour for quarter 2 2018 / 19 has shown a decrease 
of 19 incidents compared to the previous quarter but reflects an increase of 
7.5% (74 incidents) when compared to April - September 2017 the previous 
year. The Community Safety Partnership have put in place, with police and 

Page 38



community colleagues, targeted plans to address arising issues and concerns 
in Arnold Town Centre. Currently the Arnold shop watch radio system is being 
upgraded to increase communication between businesses and partnership 
organisations. Additional youth work continues to help divert young people 
from committing anti-social behaviour.  There are however increasing 
concerns that the changes in the operating procedures of Jigsaw and Gedling 
Homes may result in fewer operational staff based locally to tackle ASB 
cases. Cases therefore may not be dealt with as effectively has previously. 
This poses a risk to future performance that will need to be monitored and 
actively managed.

Change requests

2.1.6 Members will be aware, following a press release from the County Council, 
that construction of the Gedling Access Road has been delayed until 2019/20, 
as a result progress against this action in the Gedling Plan will also be 
delayed and will not be included in further quarterly reports.

2.1.7 The Service Manager has reported that as a result of the introduction of the 
Homelessness Reduction Act 2017, the Council is required to give advice and 
relief for a total of 112 days and there is no "homelessness application" as 
there previously was. As a result data is unavailable for the following 
performance indicators at quarter 2 and will not be available for future 
quarterly reports:

• LI 372 - Percentage of households who considered themselves as 
homeless who approached the Council and for whom housing advice 
resolved their situation. The Section Manager is currently considering all 
Housing Needs PI's so that they can better monitor future delivery.

• LI051 - Average time to process homeless applications (number of 
working days). 

The Service Manager is currently considering all Housing Needs performance 
indicators so that future performance can be monitored effectively. It is 
therefore proposed that the above Performance indicators are removed from 
the Gedling Plan and replacement indicators will be recommended in a future 
report.

Achievements

2.1.8 A separate report is produced highlighting key achievements delivered during 
quarter 2, focusing on areas where the Council has made a real difference to 
people’s lives. This is attached as Appendix 4 and is available on the 
Council’s website and in hard copy in the Members’ Room. The following 
outcomes are identified for particular attention.

Page 39



Antisocial Behaviour and Knife Crime – Activity to address antisocial behaviour 
and public concern about knife crime has been focussed on Arnold. Significant work 
has taken place in partnership with the Police through patrolling, targeting individuals 
and increasing the CCTV coverage in the area as well as commissioning targeted 
youth work in the area and supporting the Nottinghamshire Police Knife Amnesty 
Event.  A total of 53 knives were handed in at Gedling Borough Council’s collection 
point, which was the second highest collection during the campaign. The service has 
also dealt with 3 traveller encampments through the summer and has successfully 
used streamlined powers to clear the encampments more quickly. 

Disability swimming lessons - In September disability swimming lessons for 
children over 4 years old were introduced at Carlton Forum LC to compliment the 
already successful programme at Arnold LC. The new lessons are already proving 
popular with customers and ensure the facilities continue to cater for all aspects of 
the diverse community.  This contributes to providing a range of leisure activities for 
young people and providing support to the most vulnerable and improving health and 
wellbeing.

Syrian Refugees - The Council has achieved 86% of our commitment to rehouse 
Syrian refugees.  This means that to fulfil the requirement we need to accommodate 
a further 6 people and discussions are currently underway with a family of 4. The 
commitment runs for the term of the current Government.  This contributes to 
reducing hardship and providing support to the most vulnerable.

Digital

 Public Services Network compliance was achieved on the 23 August.
 Work was completed in Q2 on the employee claims system ready for roll out 

in Q3, this adds overtime and duty officer claims to items that employees 
claim online in a paperless system.

 A ‘report it’ form has been developed for customers to report properties that 
potentially should be subject to selective licensing.

This contributes to robust data security arrangements and delivery of the Council’s 
Digital Strategy, specifically using technology to enhance the customer experience of 
dealing with the council.

Well@work E-newsletter - Staff members have received the latest package of 
healthy lifestyles and wellbeing information through our internal e-newsletter.  The 
latest edition has focused on sun safety, menopause in the workplace, leisure centre 
membership offers, staff Pilates and mindfulness sessions, tips for physical activity 
and healthy eating and it also promoted a staff resilience and mindfulness training 
course.  This contributes to providing a positive and productive working environment 
and strong staff morale.

Erasmus+ - Work on the Erasmus+ came to a close this quarter and has delivered 
support to 98 SMEs over the 2 year project life and has supported 87 apprenticeship 
starts.  This contributes to ensuring local people are well prepared and able to 
compete for jobs.

Page 40



Arnot Hill Park Play Area - Work to refurbish Arnot Hill Park play area in Arnold 
completed. The new play area was opened by councillors and local school children 
at the beginning of the summer holidays. The new-look park, which cost of £124,000, 
now boasts a junior and toddler zone, new swings, climbing walls and a 2.9 metre 
slide which reflects the shape of the iconic Arnot Hill House located next to the play 
area. This contributes to providing an attractive and sustainable local environment 
that local people can enjoy and appreciate.

Natural History Trail - A nature trail has been installed at Gedling Country Park with 
eight wood carvings of animals native to the park. A trail booklet has also been 
produced with information about the animals and with space to make rubbings from 
the plaques attached to each of the sculptures. The trail follows the route of the DDA 
path at the park to ensure that it is accessible. The trail is part of the Gedling 
Borough’s Heritage Brought Alive project funded by Heritage Lottery Fund.   This 
contributes to providing an attractive and sustainable local environment that local 
people can enjoy and appreciate.

Advertising and Sponsorship Policy – the policy was approved to provide the 
framework by which advertising and sponsorship can be accepted.  This will enable 
the Council to generate income from third parties from advertising on and 
sponsorship of Council-owned assets and media, and to ensure effective promotion 
of Council Services.

Revised Complaints, Compliments and Comments Policy – A revised policy was 
approved to enable council to effectively manage and respond to customer 
feedback.  This contributes to improving the customer experience of dealing with the 
Council. 

Temporary Accommodation - Two properties recently leased from Gedling Homes 
to be used as Temporary Accommodation for homelessness households. This 
reduces the need to put families in Bed and Breakfast accommodation and is 
therefore more cost effective.

Gedling conversation - A series of walk wards with senior managers and elected 
members was carried out in September to see whether people think that their local 
area has got better or worse to live in over the past two years; how satisfied they are 
with the local services and amenities in their local area; whether there is enough 
suitable housing in the borough; how easy it is to find out about jobs available locally 
etc. Approximately 180 residents were interviewed across 19 wards.

Ombudsman Complaints – During 2017/18 we had the lowest number of 
complaints made to the Local Government and Social Care Ombudsman in 
Nottinghamshire, none of which were upheld. 

Page 41



2.2 Financial Information

2.2.1 Appendices 1 and 3 set out details of the current financial position on the 
Council’s General Fund Revenue Budget and the Capital Programme 
2018/19.

2.2.2 General Fund Revenue Budget

The following table summarises the overall financial position of the General 
Fund Revenue Budget and the expected total spend for the year.  This 
information has been compiled using the best information made available to 
Financial Services by the relevant spending officers as at 30 September 2018. 
In summary the Council’s General Fund outturn is projected to be underspent 
by £40,100 against the approved budget.  This represents a 0.3% underspend 
against the original budget of £12,145,200.

General Fund Revenue Budget 2018/19 – Change Analysis 

Appendix 1 outlines how the General Fund Revenue budget is divided 
between the Portfolios of the Council and includes a detailed variance 
analysis identifying the current proposed changes for quarter two against the 
approved budget for each Portfolio area. Cabinet is recommended to approve 
these changes.  

The major variances detailed in Appendix 1 include:

 Insurance – Environmental Impairment Liability Insurance, required to 
meet our obligations under the LSVT agreement. £80,000;

 Delay in the budget reduction proposal review of management - 
£30,000;

 Local Government Structure Gedling Impact - consultation exercise 
£20,000;

£
Net Council Budget for 2018/19 approved by Council on 5 
March 2018 and Cabinet’s Maximum Budget is: 12,145,200

Up to the end of September 2018 expenditure less income 
totalled 4,987,520

In the remaining 6 months of year we expect net expenditure 
to be (including major spend items of Capital Financing, IT 
Acquisitions and Use of Transformation Fund)

7,117,580

Total net revenue spend for the year is currently expected 
to be 12,105,100

Total Projected Revenue (Under)/Overspend 2018/19 (40,100)

Page 42



 Development Management – increase in major planning application fee 
income, partly offset by reduced pre application planning advice fees  
(£90,000);

 Corporate Income – additional investment interest (£24,000);
 Parks External Works – delay in the introduction of the second 

commercial tree team £27,400;

Attached at Appendix 2 are details of the budget virements authorising the 
usage of Earmarked Reserves and Revenue Budget Funds as approved by 
the Chief Financial Officer and Corporate Director in accordance with 
Financial Regulations.  No virements were approved by Portfolio Holders for 
amounts of £50,000 or less during quarter two. 

Efficiency/Budget Reduction Programme – Progress Update
 

Since 2014/15 Council have approved three separate budget reduction 
programmes totalling £5.2m net of risk provision. Progress to date has been 
positive and budget reductions achieved are in line with the profiled estimate.  
Of the total programme £2.8m is still to be delivered over 2018/19 to 2022/23.  

In 2018/19 the programme for the delivery of efficiencies totals £1,187,000.  
Quarter 1 monitoring identified that £72,500 would be delayed until 2019/20.  
Quarter 2 monitoring indicates that a further £67,600 will be delayed until 
2019/20, giving a total slippage of £140,100 as detailed in the table below. 
The budget impact of the quarter 2 deferred projects are included in Appendix 
1 and are accommodated within the current approved 2018/19 budget.

Projects deferred to 2019/20: £
Approved Quarter 1
Pet Cremation 57,600
Delay in start of first commercial tree team due to recruitment 
process and training needs (3 months)

8,700

Reduction in hanging baskets 6,200

Proposed Quarter 2
Delay in second commercial tree team to enable performance 
review of the first tree team

27,400

Community Safety review 10,200
Review of management 30,000

Total 140,100

Delivery of the programme will continue to be monitored and updates provided 
in future reports. 

Page 43



2.2.3 Capital Programme

Appendix 3 details the current projected position on the Capital Programme 
and its’ financing for 2018/19, analysed by Portfolio, and this is summarised in 
the table below. Cabinet is recommended to approve these changes.

Capital Budget 2018/19 - Change Analysis
£

Original 2018/19 budget approved by Council on 5 March 
2018 8,374,000

Approved Capital Carry Forwards from 2017/18 2,025,000

Supplement approved by Council 18/07/18 Pet Cremation 
Vehicle 23,800

Approved amendments from Quarter 1 monitoring (225,300)

Current approved budget for 2018/19 10,197,500

Proposed Quarter 2 Amendments to the 2018/19 
Programme

Additional Schemes:

Cinderpath – scheme improved due to additional grant from 
WREN 38,400

Scheme identified for deferral:

All Weather Pitch Carlton Le Willows – scheme awaiting 
outcome of Football Foundation bid, if successful scheme will 
commence in Spring 2019

(300,000)

Station Road, Carlton – Starter Homes scheme delayed whilst 
awaiting decision from HCA regarding funding use (160,300)

Total Proposed Amendments to the Capital Programme (421,900)

Proposed Revised Capital Programme 2018/19 9,775,600

Actual Expenditure to Quarter 2 2018/19 2,131,257

Estimated Expenditure Quarter 3-4 2018/19 (including spend 
expected on major projects including Commercial Property 
Investments, Arnold Town Centre and Carlton Square 
Developments, Disabled Facilities Grants and the Vehicle 
replacement programme)

7,644,343

Page 44



Projected Outturn 2018/19 9,775,600

Projected Capital Programme Variance 2018/19 0

There is a quarterly capital monitoring of the projects chaired by the S151 
officer and attended by finance officers and project officers.  This meeting is 
pro-active in ensuring that the existing capital projects are delivered as 
efficiently and quickly as possible.

Capital Programme Financing

The projected method of financing the current capital programme requirement 
of £9,775,600 is detailed in Appendix 3 and summarised in the chart below:

Borrowing, 
£5,004,500, 51%

Capital Receipts , 
£1,010,000, 10%

Revenue 
Contributions, 
£599,000, 6%

S106/CIL 
Contributions, 
£384,600, 4%

Grants & 
Contributions, 

£2,777,500, 29%

Capital Financing 2018/19

Capital Receipt Monitoring

When the Council sells General Fund assets it is permitted to use this income 
to fund capital expenditure.  The initial capital receipts estimate for 2018/19 
projected that £1,010,000 will be generated with the whole amount to be used 
in financing the capital programme in 2018/19.  There is no change to the 
capital receipt estimate projected at quarter 2 monitoring.

Page 45



Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) Monitoring

Officers have been requested to report to Cabinet on the progress with the 
Community Infrastructure awards.  In total, since the implementation of CIL 
(15 October 2015), 122 liability notices have been issued and 95 Reliefs have 
been granted either for new dwellings, residential extensions over 100 square 
metres or residential annexes.  

Since 15 October 2015 to 30 September 2018 the Council has received 47 
payments across 28 developments totalling £807,094.  Of this £118,906 
(15%) is to be spent on the locality it has been collected via Neighbourhood 
Funding. £40,355 (5%) is to be set aside to cover the administration costs as 
permitted under the Regulations and the remaining £647,833 is to be spent on 
the strategic infrastructure projects that are identified on the Regulation 123 
list.

Up to the 30 September the Council has issued liability notices totalling 
£1,587,107 of which £780,013 is still to be collected.  This is reliant upon the 
developments commencing and the applicants complying with the notice.  
Each individual case for the outstanding monies is reviewed regularly and 
where appropriate followed up by the CIL officer.

Alternative Options

3 Option – Not to amend the original Council approved budgets during the year 
to reflect the latest projected outturn position.

Advantages:

 The final outturn position of the Council can be easily compared to its 
original intentions when the budget was set and areas of budget risk 
identified.

Disadvantages:

 Budgets not aligned to current budget pressures resulting in increased 
likelihood of budget overspend and emerging Council priorities not being 
addressed.

 Restrict the effectiveness of medium term planning process and 
preparation of the forward budget if pressures and areas of efficiency are 
not readily identifiable during budget preparation.

 Budget not reflective of latest performance information.

Reason for rejection – the option is not likely to result in the best outcomes in 
financial management or support delivery of priorities.

Page 46



Financial Implications 

4 The nature of the report is such that it has significant resource implications 
across the Council.  The report itself demonstrates how resources are being 
managed.

Appendices

5 Appendix 1 – General Fund Revenue Budget 2018/19 – Budgetary Control 
Report

Appendix 2 – Use of Earmarked Reserves and Revenue Budget Funds

Appendix 3 - Capital Programme 2018/19 – Budgetary Control Report

Appendix 4 – Examples of Outcomes achieved during Quarter 2 2018/19

Background Papers

6 Detailed Quarterly Budgetary Control Exception Reports

Recommendations

Members are recommended:

f) To note the progress against Improvement Actions and Performance 
Indicators in the 2018/19 Gedling Plan;

g) To agree the amendments to the performance indicator targets set out in 
paragraph 2.1.7;

h) To approve the General Fund Revenue Budget virements included in 
Appendix 1;

i) To note the use of reserves and funds during quarter one as detailed in 
Appendix 2;

j) To approve the changes to the capital programme included in paragraph 
2.2.3. 

Reasons for Recommendations

7 To align the budgets to the current pressures and priorities and ensure the 
delivery of Council objectives is supported.

To ensure Members are informed of the performance against the Gedling 
Plan 2018/19.

Page 47



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 1

Grand Summary
Revenue Quarterly Budgetary Control Report Quarter Ending 30 September 2018

Current Approved
Budget

Profiled
Budget Actual to date Variance %

Projected
Outturn

Projected
Annual

Variance
£ £ £ £ £ £

Community Development 1,529,000 570,233 536,978 -33,255 -6 1,529,000 0
Housing, Health & Well-being 2,522,300 573,837 174,192 -399,645 -70 2,453,300 -69,000
Public Protection 1,512,100 357,119 340,452 -16,667 -5 1,520,800 8,700
Environment 4,509,300 1,158,953 971,144 -187,810 -16 4,568,700 59,400
Growth & Regeneration 1,007,100 329,500 48,500 -281,000 -85 891,600 -115,500
Resources & Reputation 1,326,800 3,024,335 2,916,255 -108,080 -4 1,429,500 102,700

Total Portfolio Budget 12,406,600 6,013,977 4,987,520 -1,026,457 -17 12,392,900 -13,700

Transfer to/ -from Earmarked Reserves -265,200 0 0 0 0 -287,800 -22,600

Total General Fund Quarter 2 12,141,400 6,013,977 4,987,520 -1,026,457 -17 12,105,100 -36,300

Net Council Budget (Cabinets General Fund Maximum Budget) 12,145,200 12,105,100 -40,100

P
age 49



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 1

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT PORTFOLIO

BUDGETARY CONTROL REPORT -  SEPTEMBER 2018

REVENUE  ITEMS  TO  BE  REPORTED

Budget Head Current Latest Net  Budget  Variance Reason  for  Variance
Approved Projected  (New Items Only)

Budget Outturn
Favourable Adverse

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
No Variances

All other budget heads 1,529.0 1,529.0
Including items previously reported

PORTFOLIO  TOTAL 1,529.0 1,529.0 - -  Net Portfolio Total

P
age 51



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 1

HOUSING, HEALTH  & WELLBEING PORTFOLIO

BUDGETARY CONTROL REPORT -  SEPTEMBER 2018

                                                                                    REVENUE  ITEMS  TO  BE  REPORTED

Budget Head Current Latest Net  Budget  Variance Reason  for  Variance
Approved Projected  (New Items Only)

Budget Outturn
Favourable Adverse

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Housing Needs
Employee Expenses 300.6 287.5 13.1 Vacant Housing Needs officer posts.

Calverton Leisure Centre
Employee Expenses 373.5 366.1 7.4 Salary savings due to reprogramming of classes

and parties to match demand.
Carlton Forum Leisure Centre
Employee Expenses 766.7 757.9 8.8 Temporary secondment of General Manager at a

lower band.
Redhill Leisure Centre
Employee Expenses 395.3 388.3 7.0 Staff savings due to reprogramming of activities.

Revenue Income (539.2) (535.2) 4.0
Reduced income on hall activities due to reduced
usage of current classes. Programme changes
being considered to include parties.

P
age 53



Appendix 1

Arnold Theatre
Employee Expenses 138.6 135.4 3.2 Vacant admin and cleaner posts.

Supplies & Services 38.8 71.6 32.8 Increase in the number of cinema productions
being shown.

Revenue Income (107.9) (161.4) 53.5

Richard Herrod Centre
Employee Expenses 313.5 298.9 14.6 Saving due to 3 management posts being covered

on temporary casual basis.
Revenue Income (348.4) (329.2) 19.2 Forecast reduction in customer usage.
Leisure Services
Revenue Income (1,652.2) (1,669.6) 17.4 Overall increase in the DD membership.

All other budget heads 2,843.0 2,843.0
Including items previously reported

PORTFOLIO  TOTAL 2,522.3 2,453.3 125.0 56.0  Net Portfolio Total
£69K Favourable

HOUSING, HEALTH  & WELLBEING PORTFOLIO

BUDGETARY CONTROL REPORT -  SEPTEMBER 2018

                                                                                    REVENUE  ITEMS  TO  BE  REPORTED

Budget Head Current Latest Net  Budget  Variance Reason  for  Variance
Approved Projected  (New Items Only)

Budget Outturn
Favourable Adverse

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

P
age 54



Appendix 1

PUBLIC PROTECTION PORTFOLIO

BUDGETARY CONTROL REPORT - SEPTEMBER 2018

REVENUE  ITEMS  TO  BE  REPORTED

Budget Head Current Latest Net  Budget  Variance Reason  for  Variance
Approved Projected  (New Items Only)

Budget Outturn
Favourable Adverse

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Licencing & Hackney Carriages
Employee Expenses 190.9 180.9 10.0 Licencing Officer vacancy

Community Protection
Employee Expenses 357.6 367.8 10.2 Slippage of community safety efficiency proposal

Supplies and Services 51.2 59.7 8.5 Costs of removing unauthorised encampments from
Church Street & Colwick Park and purchase of
Personal Protective Equipment.

All other budget heads 912.4 912.4
Including items previously reported

PORTFOLIO  TOTAL 1,512.1 1,520.8 10.0 18.7  Net Portfolio Total 
£8.7K Adverse

P
age 55



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 1
ENVIRONMENT PORTFOLIO

BUDGETARY CONTROL REPORT -  SEPTEMBER 2018

REVENUE  ITEMS  TO  BE  REPORTED

Budget Head Current Latest Net  Budget  Variance Reason  for  Variance
Approved Projected  (New Items Only)

Budget Outturn
Favourable Adverse

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Waste Management
Employee Expenses 1,558.8 1,564.0 5.2 Agency staff to cover long term sickness.

Street Care
Employee Expenses 536.3 543.3 7.0 Agency staff to cover long term sickness.

Parks
Premises 129.8 146.5 16.7 Play surface repairs and park security

improvements
Supplies and Services 133.5 141.1 7.6 Gedling Country Park Dog Control signage and

Lectern Maps.
Parks - External Works
Employee Expenses 261.4 233.2 28.2 Introduction of second commercial tree team

delayed until April 2019 to enable a performance
review of the first team (which was delayed by  3
months) to ensure viabilty prior to progression.

Revenue Income (425.1) (369.5) 55.6

Trade Waste
Supplies and Services 322.4 302.9 19.5 Lower disposal costs due to a reduction in

tonnages.
Car Parks
Premises Expenses 119.5 134.5 15.0 Urgent car park resurfacing repairs offset by

contribution from reserve (see Earmarked Reserves
sheet)

All other budget heads 1,872.7 1,872.7
(including items previously reported)

PORTFOLIO  TOTAL 4,509.3 4,568.7 47.7 107.1  Net Portfolio Total
£60.6K Adverse 

P
age 57



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 1

GROWTH & REGENERATION PORTFOLIO

BUDGETARY CONTROL REPORT -  SEPTEMBER 2018

REVENUE  ITEMS  TO  BE  REPORTED

Budget Head Current Latest Net  Budget  Variance Reason  for  Variance
Approved Projected  (New Items Only)

Budget Outturn
Favourable Adverse

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Development Management
Supplies and Services 30.8 35.2 4.4 Valuation Office consultancy on the viability of

development sites fully offset by contribution from
the developer.

Income (591.5) (704.0) 15.5
110.0 Increase in major planning applications following

the adoption of the Local Plan.
7.0 Implementation of charging for Householder

enquiries.
20.0 Reduction in pre-application planning advice fees,

review of fee structure underway.
Planning Policy
Supplies and Services 90.7 103.3 12.6 Development of Papplewick Local Plan, funded

from Papplewick Neighbourhood Local Plan Grant,
balance transferred to LDF Reserve (see
Earmarked Reserves sheet).

Income (0.6) (20.6) 20.0

All other budget heads 1,477.7 1,477.7
(including items previously reported)

PORTFOLIO  TOTAL 1,007.1 891.6 152.5 37.0  Net Portfolio Total

P
age 59



Appendix 1

£115.5K Favourable

GROWTH & REGENERATION PORTFOLIO

BUDGETARY CONTROL REPORT -  SEPTEMBER 2018

REVENUE  ITEMS  TO  BE  REPORTED

Budget Head Current Latest Net  Budget  Variance Reason  for  Variance
Approved Projected  (New Items Only)

Budget Outturn
Favourable Adverse

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

P
age 60



Appendix 1

RESOURCES & REPUTATION PORTFOLIO

BUDGETARY CONTROL REPORT -  SEPTEMBER 2018

REVENUE  ITEMS  TO  BE  REPORTED

Budget Head Current Latest Net  Budget  Variance Reason  for  Variance
Approved Projected  (New Items Only)

Budget Outturn
Favourable Adverse

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Corporate Management
Employee Expenses 549.7 552.7 3.0 Relocation expenses.
Supplies & Services 196.2 184.4 11.8 Reduction in external audit fees.

Registration of Electors
Supplies and Services 23.8 40.1 16.3 Increased volume of postage due to re registration of

electors, offset by election grant funding.
Revenue Income (1.9) (18.2) 16.3

Public Offices
Employee Expenses 135.4 136.9 1.5 Additional office cleaning hours agreed in new Police

& Crime Commissioner maintenance fees.
Premises 317.5 331.7 14.2 Revised Valuation Office valuations have resulted in

an NNDR increase and increase in utility costs.
Income (252.9) (267.6) 14.7 Additional office rental at Arnot Hill House.

P
age 61



Appendix 1

Insurance Premiums
Supplies & Services 317.5 397.5 80.0 Environmental Impairment Liability Insurance

required to meet our obligations under the LSVT
agreement.

Corporate Income & Expenditure
Debt Interest 318.2 303.7 14.5 Reduction in PWLB interest
Income (81.5) (105.5) 24.0 Additional Investment interest

Central Provisions
Employee Expenses (30.0) 0.0 30.0 Slippage of review of management efficiency

Communications & Publicity
Supplies & Services 57.7 77.7 20.0 Consultation exercise - Local Government Structure

Gedling Impact.

Legal Services
Employee Expenses 301.0 320.0 19.0 Agency cover required for long term sickness

All other budget heads (523.9) (523.9)
(including items previously reported)

PORTFOLIO  TOTAL 1,326.8 1,429.5 81.3 184.0 Net Portfolio Total
£102.7K Adverse 

RESOURCES & REPUTATION PORTFOLIO

BUDGETARY CONTROL REPORT -  SEPTEMBER 2018

REVENUE  ITEMS  TO  BE  REPORTED

Budget Head Current Latest Net  Budget  Variance Reason  for  Variance
Approved Projected  (New Items Only)

Budget Outturn
Favourable Adverse

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

P
age 62



EARMARKED RESERVES

BUDGETARY CONTROL REPORT -  SEPTEMBER 2018

REVENUE  ITEMS  TO  BE  REPORTED

Budget Head Current Latest Net  Budget  Variance Reason  for  Variance
Approved Projected  (New Items Only)

Budget Outturn
Favourable Adverse

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Transfer to/from Reserves
Planning Policy
Contribution to Reserve 0.0 7.4 7.4 Balance of Papplewick Neighbourhood Grant to

LDF Reserve.
Community Protection
Contribution to Reserve 44.3 29.3 15.0 Review of CCTV replacement fund requirements

have enabled a reduced contribution to the CCTV
reserve.

Car Parks
Contribution from Reserve 0.0 (15.0) 15.0 Urgent car park surfacing repair work from Asset

Management fund.

All other budget heads (309.5) (309.5)
Including items previously reported

RESERVES  TOTAL (265.2) (287.8) 30.0 7.4  Net Portfolio Total
£22.6K Net Contribution to Reserves

P
age 63



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 2

Transfers to/from Earmarked Reserves and Revenue Budget Funds 

Quarter Ended September 2018

As approved by Chief Financial Officer and Corporate Director in Accordance with the delegations 
outlined in the Financial Regulations.

Usage of Earmarked Reserves

£

1. Community Development
Repairs at Brickyard Community Centre 5,000
Contribution from the Risk Management Reserve (5,000)

2. Housing Health & Wellbeing
Man Down System at Carlton Forum and Richard Herrod 1,200
Contribution from the Risk Management Reserve (1,200)

Asbestos survey at Calverton Leisure Centre 500
Contribution from Risk Management Fund (500)

Asbestos Survey at Homelessness properties 700
Contribution from Risk Management Reserve (700)

5. Growth & Regeneration
NET feasibility work  with Nottingham City Council 50,000
Contribution from Business Rates Reserve (50,000)

Local Plan Inspectorate Fee 88,900
Contribution from the LDF Reserve (88,900)

6. Resources & Reputation
Noise Control  Workshop – Health & Safety 1,000
Contribution from Risk Management Reserve (1,000)

PA Apprentice 6,000
Contribution from the Apprentice Reserve (6,000)

Introduction of Lanyards 1,200
Contribution from Risk Management Reserve (1,200)

Total Expenditure £154,500
Total Reserves (£154,500)

0

Page 65



Appendix 2

Usage of Revenue Budget Funds 

£

1 Housing, Health & Wellbeing
Taxation Advice for Leisure Transformation 11,500
Transfer from Transformation Budget (11,500)

2 Resources & Reputation
Report on the investment market in the Borough 1,500
Transfer from Transformation Budget (1,500)

General Fund Total £0

Page 66



Appendix 3

FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT REPORT - CAPITAL BUDGET MONITORING

Original
Capital

Programme

Carry Quarter 1
Virements/

Supplements

Revised Quarter 2 Revised Cap Actual Estimate Latest
Forwards Cabinet Cap Prog Proposals Prog inc Qtr 2 To for Projected

inc c/f & supp to Cabinet Proposals Date Qtr 3-4 Outturn
EXPENDITURE £000's £000's £000's £000's £000's £000's £000's £000's £000's
Community Development 0.0 7.6 0.0 0.0 7.6 7.6 -2.1 9.7 7.6
Housing, Health & Wellbeing 2650.8 1376.7 -92.3 0.0 3935.2 -160.3 3774.9 1449.7 2325.2 3774.9
Public Protection 900.0 62.1 21.0 0.0 983.1 983.1 381.7 601.4 983.1
Environment 1723.2 507.4 -154.0 23.8 2100.4 38.4 2138.8 279.9 1858.9 2138.8
Resources & Reputation 3100.0 71.2 0.0 0.0 3171.2 -300.0 2871.2 22.1 2849.1 2871.2

TOTAL EXPENDITURE 8374.0 2025.0 -225.3 23.8 10197.5 -421.9 9775.6 2131.3 7644.3 9775.6
RESOURCES
Borrowing 4548.9 1041.8 (310.0) 23.8 5304.5 -300.0 5004.5 0.0 5004.5 5004.5
Capital Receipts 1010.0 1010.0 1010.0 331.6 678.4 1010.0
Revenue Contributions
Redhill Changing Rooms 8.8 8.8 8.8 8.8 0.0 8.8
Economic Development Fund 426.2 426.2 -200.0 226.2 226.2 0.0 226.2
NNDR Pool Reserve 304.1 304.1 304.1 304.1 0.0 304.1
Cinderpath (AM Reserve) 10.0 10.0 10.0 10.0 0.0 10.0
Asset Mgmt Reserve 23.9 23.9 23.9 23.9 0.0 23.9
King George V CCTV 5.0 5.0 5.0 5.0 0.0 5.0
CCTV Reserve 21.0 21.0 21.0 21.0 0.0 21.0
CIL/S106 Contributions
S106 Commuted Sum 270.0 270.0 270.0 270.0 0.0 270.0
S106 Gedling Country park 34.8 34.8 34.8 34.8 0.0 34.8
S106 Arnot Hill Play Area 74.8 74.8 74.8 74.8 0.0 74.8
CIL Contribution (KGV CCTV) 5.0 5.0 5.0 5.0 0.0 5.0
Grants & Contributions
Disabled Facilities Grant 900.0 62.1 962.1 962.1 921.2 40.9 962.1
HCA Starter Homes 160.3 160.3 -160.3 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
WREN Grant - Haywood Road 50.0 50.0 50.0 0.0 50.0 50.0
WREN Grant - Arnot Hill Play Area 50.0 50.0 50.0 50.0 0.0 50.0
WREN Grant - Cinder Path Netherfield 46.0 46.0 38.4 84.4 0.0 84.4 84.4
Warren Hill Action Group (Muirfield) 12.0 12.0 12.0 9.5 2.5 12.0
NCC Contribution (Redhill Changing Rooms) 15.0 15.0 15.0 0.0 15.0 15.0
Bestwood Parish Council (Muirfield) 4.0 4.0 4.0 0.0 4.0 4.0
N2 Growth Fund (Arnold) 1050.0 1050.0 200.0 1250.0 0.0 1250.0 1250.0
N2 Growth Fund (Carlton) 350.0 350.0 350.0 0.0 350.0 350.0

TOTAL RESOURCES 8374.0 2025.0 -225.3 23.8 10197.5 -421.9 9775.6 2295.9 7479.7 9775.6
UNDER/(OVER RESOURCED) 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

 
NOTES :-
All budgets are grossed up with any contribution from outside bodies shown as income in the Resources section.

P
age 67



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 4

Examples of Achievements and Activities

During

Quarter 2 2018/19

Page 69



PEOPLE

Objective: Reduce anti-social behaviour, crime and the fear of crime

Antisocial Behaviour and Knife Crime – Activity to address antisocial behaviour and public 
concern about knife crime has been focussed on Arnold. Significant work has taken place in 
partnership with the Police through patrolling, targeting individuals and increasing the CCTV 
coverage in the area as well as commissioning targeted youth work in the area and supporting 
the Nottinghamshire Police Knife Amnesty Event.  A total of 53 knives were handed in at Gedling 
Borough Council’s collection point, which was the second highest collection during the campaign. 
The service has also dealt with 3 traveller encampments through the summer and has 
successfully used streamlined powers to clear the encampments more quickly.

Objective: Provide a range of leisure activities for young people
New Dance Sessions at Netherfield Youth Centre - A dance artist is delivering sessions at 
Netherfield Youth Club at the LOCO Centre. The group have started to engage positively with the 
session and are hoping to perform at the local youth dance platform, Evolution at the Carlton 
Academy in December. 

Tennis in the Park - Two Tennis in the Park activity sessions were organised during the 
Summer at Arnot Hill Park by Community Relations and Parks and Street Care, delivered by On 
the Ball Coaching company.

Newstead Sports Club - The Newstead Youth Sports Club continues to attract good numbers 
and has excellent participation from the young people. A range of sporting activities take place 
both indoors and outdoors throughout the year. We encourage young people who don’t usually 
take part in such activities and have helped to build the confidence of several young people this 
year.  The Club is funded by the Council.

Newstead Summer Camp - A summer camp was organised in the summer holidays for those 
aged 10 and above and lunch was provided in the Newstead Centre, all completely free of 
charge. Over 20 young people attended each day and thoroughly enjoyed the activities which 
included sports, arts and crafts, games, films, and a village litter pick. For many of these children 
this was their only activity all summer, many never even left the village at all during the school 
holidays.

Baby and pre swim school swimming lessons - In anticipation of September 2018 when 
swimming lesson demand is high we redesigned the Baby and Pre-swim school offer. We now 
have more structured sessions for children of all ages, creating a more comprehensive swim 
pathway. Part of this work included rebranding and improvements to the website, to give parents 
a greater understanding of the scheme and what it has to offer

Disability swimming lessons - In September disability swimming lessons for children over 4 
years old were introduced at Carlton Forum LC to compliment the already successful programme 
at Arnold LC. The new lessons are already proving popular with customers and ensures the 
facilities continue to cater for all aspects of the diverse community.

Objective: Reduce hardship and provide support to the most vulnerable

Council Tax Reduction Scheme - The scheme for 2019/20 was approved by Council 19th 
September. This ensures low incomes households continue to get maximum support.

Temporary Accommodation - Two properties recently leased from Gedling Homes to be used 
as Temporary Accommodation for homelessness households. This reduces the need to put 
families in Bed and Breakfast accommodation and is therefore more cost effective.

Page 70



Syrian Refugees - The Council has achieved 86% of our commitment to rehouse Syrian 
refugees.  This means that to fulfil the requirement we need to accommodate a further 6 people, 
and discussions are currently underway with a family of 4. The commitment runs for the term of 
the current Government.

More fully embed compassion in the culture and operating practices of the Council - 
Following a police incident on 12 September in the Coppice Road area of Arnold, the Council 
opened up Killisick Community Centre to local residents as a safe place of rest while they were 
unable to access their homes.  Council staff offered refreshments and somewhere to sit for local 
residents who dropped by.  The local Children’s Centre staff also made available toys for families 
who had local children.

Outdoor Theatre in Colwick - Little Blue Monster theatre company performed their show ‘Pirate 
Pearl and the Big Blue Monster’ at Colwick Recreation Ground. The event was the first of its kind 
at this venue and around 80 people attended with tickets sold online via Event Brite, at the 
Bonington Theatre and St George’s Centre in Netherfield. 

The event was delivered as part of the Netherfield and Colwick Locality Area programme of work.

Newstead Centre Business Planning - The Council is supporting the Newstead Centre with the 
development of a new business plan.  A local consultant has been appointed to work with the 
trustees to shape the Centre’s Vision and sustainable plan for the future.  

Developing a Sustainable Community Hub for Netherfield - The Council has supported the 
St. George’s Centre to access £10,000 from Awards for All to develop a feasibility plan to 
enhance the current community hub in Netherfield.  Two consultants have been appointed and 
plans will consider expanding the current site and the development of a sustainable plan to 
manage this.

Newstead Garden Competition / Newstead in Bloom - The garden competition was again 
successful with more entries this year giving 31 category entries from some truly wonderful 
gardens. The prizes were awarded to the winners and runners up at the Newstead fun day with 
bouquets once again provided by Bunches. The Parish Council took over responsibility for 
watering the hanging baskets and multi-tier planters and also planted shrubs and perennials in 
the planters, the hanging baskets looked especially good with nice trailing plants. Coincidentally, 
the flowers were yellow which worked well for the Tour of Britain which came to the village in 
September.  

Objective: Promote and encourage pride, good citizenship and participation 
in the local area

Gedling Borough Arts Festival - Gedling Borough Arts Festival took place from 16 to 21 July. 
Activity was focussed in Arnold around the Methodist Church but sessions also took place in 
Calverton, Netherfield and Carlton. The number of highlights from the festival programme 
included:

 Workshops with authors and poets
 A choral evening with three local community choirs
 Outdoor theatre in Arnot Hill Park
 Performances from local schools

Florence Paton - An artist has been selected, Hilary Cartmel, to design and create a memorial to 
the first female MP in the borough, Florence Paton. The memorial will be installed in time for 
International Women’s Day 2019 in the Carlton Hill Garden for the Blind. 

Page 71



Killisick Fun Day - Another great event with the Van Buren Variety Show provided the main 
attraction. There were inflatables, White Post Farm animals, balloon modelling, Climbing Wall, 
Sports Coaches providing fun games, craft activities for the children, face painting and lots of 
information stalls. This continues to be a popular free event!

Newstead Fun Day - This fun day grows each year and was even bigger and better attended 
than last year! Councillor Gregory attended to present the prizes to the Garden Competition 
winners but we also had the Fun Fair, the Mighty Smith and lots of stalls and activities including 
inflatables, balloon modelling, Climbing Wall, Sports Coaches providing games, craft stalls and 
activities for the children and Vintage Vehicles. This is a joint event with the Pit micro pub.

Tour of Britain - The Tour of Britain came through Newstead village on 8th September for the 
second year running and was better than last year with fantastic attendance. The village was 
even better decorated with yellow bunting and crepe paper, balloons and several bicycles painted 
bright yellow on display. The Newstead Dragon gave a warm welcome to the racers and the little 
people outside the Primary School were yarn bombed. At the Pit micro pub there were again 
cycling related and non-cycling related activities available and Dr Bike repairing cycles, and he 
was again very busy. 

Events at Newstead Centre - The Locality Co-ordinator has continued to support the Centre 
with events and helped to organise a summer fair. The café is open and the community do use it. 

Gedling Football Development Group - The latest meeting of this group of local community 
football clubs was held on Monday 16th July, with representatives from 7 different clubs.  Topics 
discussed included a new FA Local Football Facilities Plan for the Borough and coach education.  
The group is facilitated by the Community Relations Service Area.

Gedling Heritage Festival - The first Gedling Heritage Festival finished in July as part of the 
Heritage Lottery Funded, Gedling Borough’s Heritage Brought Alive project.  The Festival 
included Arnold Carnival, Gedling Gala, Heritage Walks and Talks and an Arnold on Film 
Showing at the Bonington Theatre.  All activities were led or supported by local volunteers.  In 
total 992 participants were recorded as taking part in the Festival which was supported by 30 
local volunteers.  81% of those surveyed said that the Festival met their expectations very well.

Community and Voluntary Sector E-Newsletter - The latest edition of our e-newsletter for the 
local community and voluntary sector was circulated in July.  It covered the promotion of local 
community events, funding news, a call out for new Trustees for the Newstead Centre and 
promoted our community centres for hire to local groups.  Local charities received a 
concessionary rate for any bookings at the Council’s community centres. 

Objective: Improve health and wellbeing
Smoke free Events - Both Killisick and Newstead Fun Days were smoke free this year and most 
people did respect the signs. 

Cabinet Adopts Health and Wellbeing Delivery Plan - A new Health and Wellbeing Delivery 
Plan for Gedling has been formally adopted by the Council’s Cabinet.  The plan aims to reduce 
health inequalities and improve the health and wellbeing of Gedling Borough residents through a 
model of community centred wellbeing.  This will involve enabling the community to have a 
greater voice in shaping and delivering services to create a positive living environment and a 
good quality of life.

Page 72



Carlton le Willows Improver Running Sessions - Improver running sessions have continued 
over the summer at Carlton le Willows Academy, supported by the Council’s Community 
Relations Service Area. The sessions are aimed at those that can run 5km and would like to 
improve their time or run a bit further. Over 80 individuals have engaged with the sessions over 
the summer.  The session co-ordinator has provided the following feedback: 

“The sessions are aimed to be as inclusive as possible as, while appropriate for runners of all 
abilities, they target those who have never previously done interval training. We have carried out 
three mile time trails and have found that most people have found their times have improved. 
Also we have found that attendees have seen dramatic improvements in parkruns or other races 
they have been entering. Most importantly a genuine running community has built up which has 
proved beneficial to those who have previously run individually.”

Health and Wellbeing E-Newsletter - Summer community e-newsletter sent out to over 2500 
residents and contained information on a number of activities and services provided over the 
summer to promote healthy lifestyles.

Express Yourself - City Arts have secured £21,000 Local Improvement Scheme funding to 
deliver Express Yourself for the next three years in Gedling (£21k). Sessions commence at 
Arnold Library in October 2018 and will be supported by the Council’s Community Relations 
Service Area.

University Researching Loneliness and Social Isolation in Gedling - Over the summer 
Nottingham Trent University have been working with the Community Relations Service Area to 
carry out an Undergraduate Research project around loneliness and social isolation. Funded by 
the University, the project involved focus groups where Gedling residents had the opportunity to 
give their views on the topic. There were two focus groups for older people and one for younger 
people. The final report will be available in the autumn.

SPRIING – Social Prescription Reducing Isolation In Gedling - Referrals are now coming in 
through a range of sources including GPs, the Notts Enabling team and self-referrals.  A number 
of community navigators are now signed up to the project and a number of community groups are 
supporting the project.  Nottingham Trent University will be supporting the evaluation to inform 
future work programmes.  This is currently a twelve month pilot until March 2019 funded by 
Jigsaw Homes and Gedling Borough Council.  An application has been submitted to the Big 
Lottery Fund’s Building Connections’ programme to sustain the project for three further years.  

Activities at Redhill 3G - Two disability football sessions took place during the summer holidays 
delivered by Notts FA.  A new well attended football camp delivered by Nottingham Forest in the 
Community was also piloted during the summer holidays. 

National fitness Day - The leisure centres put on a week’s worth of activities across the site in 
conjunction with National Fitness Day. These sessions were hugely popular and created a real 
buzz around the sites. During this promotion we had 115 sign-ups to the DNA scheme

Record attendance levels - The leisure centres and Bonington Theatre are enjoying record 
levels of attendances this year, which figures up by 50,000 compared to the same time in 17/18.

Redhill LC Changing Rooms
The changing rooms at Redhill LC have been refurbished, extended and redecorated in response 
to customer feedback about the facilities. The programme of works took place over summer and 
the facilities are now fresh, modern and with improved disabled facilities.

Page 73



PLACE

Objective: Ensure local people are well prepared and able to complete for 
jobs
Erasmus+ - Work on the Erasmus+ came to a close this quarter and has delivered support to 98 
SMEs over the 2 year project life and has supported 87 apprenticeship starts.

Employability Events - In July the Economic Growth Team delivered two employability events. 
A speed networking and have a go event at Christ the King which 150 year 10 students 
participated in and a speed networking event followed by a careers fair for year 10 students at 
Carlton le Willows in which 250 students participated.

Objective: Provide an attractive and sustainable local environment that local 
people can enjoy and appreciate
Adoption of Local Planning Document - The Local Planning Document was adopted on 18th 
July 2018 and the period for legal challenge has now passed.  The Local Planning Document 
(Local Plan part 2) will work with the Aligned Core Strategy (Local Plan part 1) to shape future 
development in Gedling Borough by planning for new homes, jobs and infrastructure.  These 
documents are used to help decide planning applications and guide the location and design of 
development in Gedling Borough.

Five Year Land Supply - Following the adoption of the LPD which allocated additional land for 
development, the Council’s Five Year Land Supply was updated in August 2018 and this 
demonstrates that the Council now has a 5.10 year supply of land.

Papplewick Neighbourhood Plan - Following the independent examination of the Papplewick 
Neighbourhood Plan and the receipt of the Examiner’s Report, the Papplewick Neighbourhood 
Plan was approved by referendum on 5th July 2018.  The Papplewick Neighbourhood Plan was 
officially made (adopted) by Gedling Borough Council on 6 September 2018.  As such the 
Papplewick Neighbourhood Plan now forms part of the Development Plan for Gedling Borough 
and will be used to decide planning applications within the parish of Papplewick.

Papplewick Conservation Area Appraisal - The Conservation Area Appraisal and 
Management Plan for Papplewick was published in July 2018.  The Conservation Area Appraisal 
seeks to highlight the specific qualities of the area that contributes to its character and which are 
worthy of protection and enhancement.  The Appraisal also provided the opportunity to re-assess 
the conservation area boundary and included an amendment to the boundary to the north of the 
village.

Arnot Hill Park Play Area - Work to refurbish Arnot Hill Park play area in Arnold completed. The 
new play area was opened by councillors and local school children at the beginning of the 
summer holidays. The new-look park, which cost of £124,000, now boasts a junior and toddler 
zone, new swings, climbing walls and a 2.9 metre slide which reflects the shape of the iconic 
Arnot Hill House located next to the play area. 

Natural History Trail - A nature trail has been installed at Gedling Country Park with eight wood 
carvings of animals native to the park. A trail booklet has also been produced with information 
about the animals and with space to make rubbings from the plaques attached to each of the 
sculptures. The trail follows the route of the DDA path at the park to ensure that it is accessible. 
The trail is part of the Gedling Borough’s Heritage Brought Alive project funded by Heritage 
Lottery Fund.

Derelict Properties - Agreed to purchase the derelict properties on Burton Road with aspirations 
to demolish them by Christmas.

Page 74



PERFORMANCE

Objective: Improve the customer experience of dealing with the Council/ Give 
taxpayers value for money
Revised complaints/compliments and comment policy – A revised policy was approved to 
enable council to effectively manage and respond to customer feedback.  This contributes to 
improving the customer experience of dealing with the Council. 

Digital

         Public Services Network compliance was achieved on the 23 August.
         Work was completed in Q2 on the employee claims system ready for roll out in Q3, this 

adds overtime and duty officer claims to items that employees claim online in a paperless 
system.

         A report it form has been developed for customers to report properties that potentially 
should be subject to selective licensing.

Advertising and Sponsorship Policy – the policy was approved to provide the framework by 
which advertising and sponsorship can be accepted.  This will enable the Council to generate 
income from third parties from advertising on and sponsorship of Council-owned assets and 
media, and to ensure effective promotion of Council Services.

Gedling conversation - A series of walk wards with senior managers and elected members was 
carried out in September to see whether people think that their local area has got better or worse 
to live in over the past two years; how satisfied they are with the local services and amenities in 
their local area; whether there is enough suitable housing in the borough; how easy it is to find 
out about jobs available locally etc.  Approximately 180 residents were interviewed across 19 
wards.

Ombudsman Complaints – This year we had the lowest number of complaints made to the local 
Ombudsman, with eight, none of which were upheld.

Objective: Maintain a positive and productive working environment and 
strong staff morale

National Cycle to Work Day - 15 members of staff took up the Dr Bike initiative as part of 
National Cycle to Work Day 15 August. 

Well@work E-newsletter - Staff members have received the latest package of healthy lifestyles 
and wellbeing information through our internal e-newsletter.  The latest edition has focused on 
sun safety, menopause in the workplace, leisure centre membership offers, staff Pilates and 
mindfulness sessions, tips for physical activity and healthy eating and it also promoted a staff 
resilience and mindfulness training course.

Page 75



This page is intentionally left blank



Report to Cabinet

Subject: Forward Plan

Date: 8 November 2018

Author: Service Manager, Democratic Services

Wards Affected

Borough-wide.

Purpose

To present the Executive’s draft Forward Plan for the next four month period.

Key Decision

This is not a Key Decision.

Recommendation(s)

It is recommended THAT Cabinet note the contents of the draft Forward Plan 
making comments where appropriate.  

Background

1 The Council is required by law to give to give notice of key decisions 
that are scheduled to be taken by the Executive. 

A key decision is one which is financially significant, in terms of 
spending or savings, for the service or function concerned (more than 
£500,000), or which will have a significant impact on communities, in 
two or more wards in the Borough.

In the interests of effective coordination and public transparency, the 
plan includes any item that is likely to require an Executive decision of 
the Council, Cabinet or Cabinet Member (whether a key decision or 
not). The Forward Plan covers the following 4 months and must be 
updated on a rolling monthly basis. All items have been discussed and 
approved by the Senior Leadership Team.

Proposal

Page 77

Agenda Item 7



2 The Forward Plan is ultimately the responsibility of the Leader and 
Cabinet as it contains Executive business due for decision. The Plan is 
therefore presented at this meeting to give Cabinet the opportunity to 
discuss, amend or delete any item that is listed.

Alternative Options

3.1 Cabinet could decide not agree with any of the items are suggested for 
inclusion in the plan. This would then be referred back to the Senior 
Leadership Team.

3.2 Cabinet could decide to move the date for consideration of any item.

Financial Implications 

4 There are no financial implications directly arising from this report.

Appendices

5 Appendix 1 – Forward Plan

Background Papers

6 None identified.

Reasons for Recommendations

7 To promote the items that are due for decision by Gedling Borough 
Council’s Executive over the following four month period.

Page 78



1

FORWARD PLAN
FOR THE FOUR MONTH PERIOD 1 NOVEMBER 2018 TO 28 FEBRUARY 2019

This Forward Plan sets out the details of the key and non-key decisions which the Executive Cabinet, individual Executive Members or Officers expect 
to take during the next four month period. 

The current members of the Cabinet are:

Councillor John Clarke – Leader of the Council
Councillor Michael Payne – Deputy Leader and Portfolio Holder for Resources and Reputation
Councillor Peter Barnes – Portfolio Holder for Environment
Councillor David Ellis – Portfolio Holder for Public Protection
Councillor Gary Gregory – Portfolio Holder for Community Development
Councillor Jenny Hollingsworth – Portfolio Holder for Growth and Regeneration
Councillor Henry Wheeler – Portfolio Holder for Health and Wellbeing.

Anyone wishing to make representations about any of the matters listed below may do so by contacting the relevant officer listed against each key 
decision.

P
age 79



1

Description of the decision Date decision 
is expected to 
be taken and 
who will take 
the decision?

Responsible Officer Documents to be 
considered by the 
decision maker

Cabinet Portfolio Open / Exempt (and 
reason if the decision is 
to be taken in private)

Is this a Key Decision?
Prudential Code Indicator Monitoring 
2018/19 and Quarterly Treasury Activity 
Report
To inform Members of the performance 
monitoring of the 2018/19 Prudential Code 
Indicators, and to advise Members of the 
quarterly treasury activity as required by 
the Treasury Management Strategy.

8 Nov 2018
Cabinet

Sue Healey, Principal 
Accountant

Portfolio Holder for 
Resources and 
Reputation

Open

Yes

Quarterly Budget Monitoring, 
Performance Digest & Virement Report
To update members on financial and 
performance information for the 2nd quarter 
of the 2018/19 year. 

8 Nov 2018
Cabinet

Alison Ball, Service 
Manager Finance

Leader of the Council Open

Yes

Adoption of development brief for 
housing allocations to the North East of 
Arnold
To adopt the development brief for housing 
allocations to the North East of Arnold as a 
Supplementary Planning Document.

10 Jan 2019
Cabinet

Jo Gray, Service 
Manager, Planning 
Policy

Portfolio Holder for 
Growth and 
Regeneration

Open

No

Non-designated Heritage Assets
To inform members of the proposed 
identification of non-designated heritage 
assets and to seek approval for the 
methodology and selection criteria to be 
used.

10 Jan 2019
Cabinet

Jo Gray, Service 
Manager, Planning 
Policy

Portfolio Holder for 
Growth and 
Regeneration

Open

No

Adoption of Burton Joyce 
Neighbourhood Plan
To adopt the Burton Joyce Neighbourhood 
Plan.

Not before 10 
Jan 2019
Cabinet

Jo Gray, Service 
Manager, Planning 
Policy

Portfolio Holder for 
Growth and 
Regeneration

Open

No

Gedling Gambing Statement of Policy
To inform Members of the responses to 
the consultation on the Authority’s 
Gambling Statement of Policy and to seek 
Cabinet support for Council to approve the 

10 Jan 2019
Cabinet

30 Jan 2019
Council

Rachel Pentlow, 
Licensing Officer

Gedling Gambling 
Statement of Policy
Appendix 1

Portfolio Holder for 
Public Protection

Open

Yes

P
age 80



November 2018 - 2- 

Description of the decision Date decision 
is expected to 
be taken and 
who will take 
the decision?

Responsible Officer Documents to be 
considered by the 
decision maker

Cabinet Portfolio Public / Exempt (and 
reason if the decision is 
to be taken in private)

Is this a key decision?
amended version of the Gambling 
Statement of Policy which takes into 
account the consultation responses.
Review of Core Strategy
To inform members of the review of the 
core strategy and the reasons for this and 
to adopt an updated Local Development 
Scheme.

10 Jan 2019
Cabinet

Jo Gray, Service 
Manager, Planning 
Policy

Review of Core Strategy Portfolio Holder for 
Growth and 
Regeneration

Open

No

Prudential Code Indicator Monitoring 
2018/19 and Quarterly Treasury Activity 
Report
To inform Members of the performance 
monitoring of the 2018/19 Prudential Code 
Indicators, and to advise Members of the 
quarterly treasury activity as required by 
the Treasury Management Strategy.

31 Jan 2019
Cabinet

Sue Healey, Principal 
Accountant

Portfolio Holder for 
Resources and 
Reputation

Open

Yes

Quarterly Budget Monitoring, 
Performance Digest & Virement Report
To update members on financial and 
performance information for the 3rd 
quarter of the 2018/19 year.

31 Jan 2019
Cabinet

Alison Ball, Service 
Manager Finance

Portfolio Holder for 
Resources and 
Reputation

Open

Yes

Prudential and Treasury Indicators and 
Treasury Management Strategy 
Statement 2019/20
To approve the Council’s Prudential Code 
Indicators and Treasury Strategy for 
2018/19.

14 Feb 2019
Cabinet

4 Mar 2019
Council

Sue Healey, Principal 
Accountant

Portfolio Holder for 
Resources and 
Reputation

Open

Yes

Capital Programme and Capital 
Investment Strategy
To approve the capital investment strategy 
and capital spending programme for the 
next financial year.

14 Feb 2019
Cabinet

4 Mar 2019
Council

Alison Ball, Service 
Manager Finance

Portfolio Holder for 
Resources and 
Reputation

Open

Yes

Gedling Plan 2019/20 (including General 
Fund Revenue Budget)
To approve the priorities, objectives and 
top actions for the Council for the 

14 Feb 2019
Cabinet

4 Mar 2019

Alison Ball, Service 
Manager Finance

Portfolio Holder for 
Resources and 
Reputation

Open

Yes

P
age 81



November 2018 - 3- 

Description of the decision Date decision 
is expected to 
be taken and 
who will take 
the decision?

Responsible Officer Documents to be 
considered by the 
decision maker

Cabinet Portfolio Public / Exempt (and 
reason if the decision is 
to be taken in private)

Is this a key decision?
forthcoming year with the associated 
revenue budget.

Council

Adoption of Linby Neighbourhood Plan
To adopt the Linby Neighbourhood Plan.

Not before 1 
Jun 2019
Cabinet

Jo Gray, Service 
Manager, Planning 
Policy

Portfolio Holder for 
Growth and 
Regeneration

Open

No

P
age 82


	Agenda
	3 To approve, as a correct record, the minutes of the meeting held on 11 October 2018.
	4 Consultation on local government reorganisation in Nottinghamshire
	Enc. 2 for Consultation on local government reorganisation in Nottinghamshire

	5 Prudential Code Indicator Monitoring 2018/19 and Quarterly Treasury Activity Report
	Appendix 1.xlsx
	Appendix 2
	Copy of Appendix 3

	6 Quarterly Budget Monitoring, Performance Digest & Virement Report
	App1 RQBC Report
	Community Dev
	Health Housing
	Public Protection
	Environment
	Growth & Regen
	Resources
	Earmarked Res
	5. Appendix 2 Virements
	App 3 Capital Summary
	4. Appendix 4 Outcomes

	7 Forward Plan
	$$Plan


